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WHO WE ARE
Beef Farmers of Ontario (BFO) represents over 19,000 beef farmers
in Ontario and is the leading organization in Ontario working with all
beef farmers to develop and support landmark achievements that
move Ontario’s beef industry forward sustainably and profitably. BFO is
involved in a wide range of issues and initiatives that are important to
all stakeholders within Ontario’s beef industry which include industry
sustainability, trade, animal health and care, environment and food safety.
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A MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT

Joe Hill
BFO PRESIDENT

In a year of ups and downs in Ontario’s beef industry, we have worked hard to maintain
stability for farmers and their families and to increase demand for locally produced Ontario beef.
You, the voting delegates, through your overwhelming support at last year’s AGM to increase the provincial
check-off by $1.50 to carry out these elements of BFO’s strategic plan to strengthen and grow Ontario’s
beef industry, laid the foundation for where we are today. Having combined marketing efforts in 2019
with the Ontario Cattle Feeders’ Association on a bold new path for Ontario beef, there has been a lot of
activity and many exciting initiatives developed and implemented this past year. Specifically, in the areas
of market development and producer and consumer engagement.
Amidst this progress for our industry, there

continues to stay engaged with

was also strife. Large supplies of fed cattle

government on what matters most to

and reduced processing capacity have led

Ontario’s beef industry. On June 20,

to unsustainable losses, and prevented

2019, Premier Ford reset his cabinet after

our sector from taking advantage of the

one year into a majority PC government.

tremendous and growing demand for

Hon. Ernie Hardeman, Ontario Minister

our products at home and abroad. There

of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs

have been several contributing factors,

(OMAFRA), was one of only eight ministers

including labour supply challenges

to maintain his portfolio. BFO has been

discouraging expansion, reduced interest

meeting with new and not-so-new MPPs

in Canadian cattle from U.S. packers, trade

since the provincial election last year.

disruptions, growth in the cattle feeding

Key messages in our meetings included,

and dairy sectors, and most recently, the

immediate assistance to help mitigate

cancellation of Ryding-Regency’s licence.

losses in processing capacity that have

A late, wet spring delayed planting and

led to periodic and increasingly lengthy

pasture development, and a wet, cold

backlogs in cattle, prolonged market

harvest saw crop still standing in the fields

price depression, increased investment/

into the new year.

beef top-up to the Risk Management

Let’s talk about beef. The BFO Board
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Program (RMP), access to Crown land for
agricultural purposes, and expansion of

community pastures.
From my conversations with Minister
Hardeman and the OMAFRA staff, I am
cautiously optimistic that the commitment
to increase the cap on the RMP by $50
million annually, and allow any unused
funding to roll over into the next program
year, beginning in the 2021 program
year will be fulfilled. It is our hope that
some of those dollars will be brought
forward ahead of schedule to help offset
some of the deep and prolonged losses
we’ve seen in the industry, particularly
on the cattle feeding side. BFO will be
making a pre-budget submission to the
Minister of Finance which includes our
earnest request for the government
to bring forward to 2020 that platform
commitment.

With the suspension and subsequent

who were supportive of this endeavour

Research and Innovation Corporation.

cancellation of Ryding-Regency Meat

from the very beginning such as local

The level of collaboration between

Packers’ licence in the fall, a lot of my

MPP Ted Arnott, local MP Michael Chong,

industry organizations, academia and

time was spent working closely with the

Guelph MP Lloyd Longfield, Guelph MPP

government is a shining example of the

Canadian Cattlemen’s Association and

Mike Schreiner, and Senator Rob Black

positive outcomes that can be achieved

other partners to request immediate

from Fergus. In August, I had the pleasure

when resources and visions are aligned in

government action to aid us in resolving

of touring Minister Hardeman at the

pursuit of the same goals.

the mounting threats facing Ontario’s

research facilities and in September, we

beef farmers from the lack of processing

welcomed close to 1,000 beef producers,

capacity in Eastern Canada. We shared

researchers, industry stakeholders, and

with the Advisory Councillors at their

community members to celebrate the

December meeting, and each county

official grand opening at an open house

organization in January, the steps we took

for the centre. It was fitting that in my final

to try and find a remedy for this situation.

year on the BFO Board, and after many

I am confident that we did everything we

years of negotiations with the province

could to build awareness of the severity

and the University, planning and design

of the issue and need for timely solutions.

meetings, additional fundraising efforts,

I am hopeful that our continued advocacy

and construction we were finally able

efforts, and strong ties to the processing

to celebrate the fruits of that labour and

sector will set us on a path to help correct

witness the vision that was established

some of the structural issues preventing

so many years ago become a reality. I’m

our sector from truly taking advantage of

proud of the foresight and leadership

the growth opportunities that lay before it.

the Board demonstrated at the time by

Ending on a high note, I can’t help but
reflect back on the evolution of the Elora
Beef Cattle Research Station now formally
referred to as the Ontario Beef Research
Centre. My first appointment with BFO was
to represent beef’s interest on a steering

providing significant investment in beef
research capacity in Ontario. I’m happy to
have represented our sector throughout
this process to ensure Ontario maintains
access to some of the best beef research
facilities in North America.

committee referred to as “Mission 2050”,

Construction to modernize the beef

tasked with developing a new livestock

research centre facilities included two

research centre at Elora. When I joined

new cow-calf barns to house a herd size

the group which included beef, pork, dairy,

of 288 cows plus replacement heifers, a

and poultry, Phase I - a new dairy research

new handling area, new feedlot facilities

complex - had been committed to and was

set to open late summer 2021, increased

out for design. The steering committee

pasture, a new site office and researcher

agreed that the beef build should be

facilities. This state-of-the-art beef

scheduled for Phase II of construction

research centre, a hub for bovine research

provided industry matching funds could be

in Eastern Canada, would not be possible

obtained to fund the project. In December

without the collaboration of efforts and

2011, after much debate, the BFO Board

individuals from the University of Guelph,

committed to setting aside industry’s share

the Ontario Ministry of Agriculture,

of the new construction costs to ensure

Food and Rural Affairs, Agriculture and

this project became a reality.

Agri-Food Canada, the Beef Farmers of

In July 2019, I was proud to host the BFO
board of directors at the new Ontario Beef
Research Centre along with invited guests

Ontario, Ontario beef farmers through
their check-off investment, the Canadian

Also, this year we saw the passing of
the torch as long time Executive Director
Dave Stewart retired from BFO and after a
competitive search process we were able
to welcome Richard Horne into the role. I
am confident in Richard’s abilities to lead
the organization, and the team he has in
part assembled and in part inherited to
support the board and the membership
moving forward.
In closing, there is a new president coming
on board at this AGM as this is my last year,
having served three consecutive terms as
a board member. It has been a challenging
but rewarding nine years for me and I trust
that the newly elected board members
will build on the hard work that has been
done and will continually make the tough
decisions required to strengthen Ontario’s
beef industry, as well to spawn new
initiatives that will lead to industry growth
and profit in our farming operations.
I want to thank my fellow board directors,
both past and present, for their shared
vision and dedication to making the
Ontario beef industry stronger and better.
I want to thank the staff for their hard
work on behalf of all Ontario beef farmers
and for their support each and every
time I was face-to-face with government,
media, and other industry stakeholders.
And my sincere thanks to my wife Jenn
for supporting me on this journey and
for enabling me to fully participate in and
enjoy my role on the board serving all of
you.
Thank you.

Cattlemen’s Association, the Beef Cattle
Research Council, and the Livestock
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BFO PAST PRESIDENTS
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1963

Bruce Mehlenbacher, Haldimand

1988

Robert Gregson, Elgin

1964

Ross Beattie, Simcoe

1989

Jim Magee, Oxford

1965

George Morris, Kent

1990

David Whittington, Peterborough

1966

Harvey Ackert, Bruce

1991

Glenn Coultes, Huron

1967 - 1968

Walter Beath, Ontario County

1992

Doug Gear, Dufferin

1969

Vern Kaufman, Oxford

1993

Robert Kerr, Kent

1970

Lawrence Markusse, Lambton

1994

Ken Summers, Victoria

1971

Hugh Grace, Lanark

1995

Harvey Graham, Durham East

1972

Tom Jackson, Peel-Halton

1996

Dale Pallister, Grey

1973

Stewart Brown, Elgin

1997

Linda Barker, Haldimand

1974

Grant Burroughes, York

1998

Bob Dobson, Renfrew

1975

Clarence Hardy, Middlesex

1999

Darlene Bowen, Temiskaming

1976

Ronald Oswald, Bruce

2000

Stan Eby, Bruce

1977

Archie Etherington, Huron

2001

Dick van der Byl, Glengarry

1978

Alex Connell, Wellington

2002

Mike Buis, Kent

1979 - 1980

Morley Shepherdson, Temiskaming

2003 - 2004

Ron Wooddisse, Wellington

1981

Gus Lask, Ontario County

2005 - 2007

Ian McKillop, Elgin

1982

Tony Noorloos, Lambton

2008 - 2009

Gord Hardy, Middlesex

1983

Robert Chapple, Kent

2010 - 2011

Curtis Royal, Simcoe

1984 - 1985

Gerhard Schickedanz, York

2012 - 2013

Dan Darling, Northumberland

1986

Edgar Wideman, Waterloo

2014 - 2015

Bob Gordanier, Dufferin

1987

Hugh Sharpe, Lennox and Addington

2016 - 2017

Matt Bowman, Temiskaming

2018 – 2019

Joe Hill, Wellington
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MESSAGE FROM THE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Richard Horne
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

My first six months as BFO’s Executive Director have been challenging to say the least. Processing bottlenecks
and prolonged market losses put significant stress on feedlot operators and the rest of the Ontario beef industry,
eliminating hopes of profitability for many. Difficult planting and harvest conditions were another challenge in
2019, hampering the quality, availability and affordability of feed. The suspension and eventual cancellation
of Ryding-Regency’s processing licence represented another blow to a sector already ripe with challenges.
Despite the many hardships that defined 2019, there were also a number of positive developments that have
left me feeling optimistic about the future of the sector, and confident in the bold path the association has
taken to improve the viability and sustainability of Ontario beef farms.
The activities designed to increase the

expect to decrease the impact of that

major retailers and foodservice distributors

market penetration of Ontario branded

volatility through increased demand for our

to develop or expand branded Ontario

beef products, both here at home and

products. This is a large and daunting task,

beef programs are ongoing with the likes of

abroad, and the programs aimed at

but one I am confident we can deliver on

Longo’s, Farm Boy, Fortinos, Metro, Gordon

supporting producers and engaging

by leveraging the expertise of Jim Clark,

Foodservice, Whole Foods, and Hero

consumers are both extensive and exciting.

John Baker, and others to deliver the

Burger, to name a few. Opportunities to

Ontario beef brand story to consumers at

further leverage demand for our products

home and across the globe.

in key high-value export markets in Japan,

Volatility in the marketplace exists not
just in Ontario but around the world. We
will not completely eliminate it, but by

A lot of work has already been done in

strengthening the consumer’s relationship

execution of our new marketing strategy,

with Ontario beef products through our

including the development of new premium

new Ontario Beef Marketing Strategy

branded Ontario beef programs such as

that is being overseen by the BFO-OCFA

Carve, Ontario Reserve Angus Beef, and

Joint Marketing Committee (JMC), we

an Ontario AAA program. Discussions with

8I
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Taiwan, South Korea, and Vietnam led to
many promising discussions with beef
importers and distributors in those markets
in 2019. Efforts to increase our presence,
and to develop or expand premium brands
for specific consumer segments in these
markets will continue into 2020.

In mid-October, Vice-President Rob
Lipsett, John Baker, Director of
Ontario Beef Market Development,
and I joined Ontario Minister Ernie
Hardeman and Minister Raymond
Cho on an agricultural trade mission
to South Korea and Japan along with
representatives from the pork and
grains sectors. The trade mission
provided an excellent opportunity to
promote Ontario beef and flagship
brands like Ontario Corn Fed Beef,
while fostering relationships with
key market contacts in the region.
It was clear from the discussions in
both countries that the Ontario beef
brand story resonates strongly with
consumers, and there is significant
room for Ontario beef to grow its
market presence in the region.
The mission also provided important
recognition of the need to diversify
and expand our presence in key export
markets, given the escalating trade
disruptions and barriers the Ontario
beef sector is currently facing in other
markets, notably China, Saudi Arabia,
the U.S. and the E.U.
In Japan, I was pleased to witness
the collaborative signing agreement
between Ontario Corn Fed Beef and
Kinsho Supermarkets, a relationship
that will assist in the continued growth
of Ontario Corn Fed Beef product
presence in Kinsho stores throughout
Japan. I was also privileged to attend
an Ontario beef reception at the
Canadian Embassy in Tokyo as the
trade mission wrapped up. Over 100
beef importers, retailers, and food
service representatives attended the
event, where they enjoyed Ontario beef

products.
Although we have just begun the
implementation of our marketing
strategy, I am pleased by what we

website and e-newsletter or connect
via social media to find out about how
you can participate in and benefit from
these programs.

have been able to accomplish in such

In addition to marketing and producer

a short time. Your Board of Directors

engagement, consumer engagement

recognizes and fully appreciates the

activities represent the third pillar of

confidence you placed in this strategy,

our strategy. This past year a lot of

as evidenced by your approval of the

work was done to re-brand the former

increase in provincial check-off at

“Make it Ontario Beef” identity, create a

the last BFO AGM, and your support

new logo and website, and reintroduce

of the bold path BFO and OCFA put

Ontario beef to consumers. Ontario

forward more than a year ago. As we

Beef – as it is now called – is the

had promised then, the JMC is carefully

consumer-facing brand that engages

monitoring the return on investment of

directly with consumers to drive

those check-off dollars in this area to

awareness and purchase of Ontario

ensure they are being fully maximized.

beef. Ontario Beef supports all Ontario

While the marketing strategy represents
the largest focus area of BFO’s strategic
plan we are also heavily focused on
developing and expanding our efforts
around producer and consumer
engagement.
Over the past year, the producer
engagement team has undertaken a
number of initiatives geared toward
you, our producer members. Some of
the activities include on-farm activist
preparation training, the continuation of
the Beef Youth Development program,
the inaugural Cow-Calf Management
School/Ranching for Profit Workshop,
the Ridgetown Beef Extension Program,
Carcass 101 workshop, and the bfoUP
webinar series, among others. We
are also excited about what we have
planned for 2020, including the launch
of the Feedlot Management School
and a calf club video series, and the
continued offering of many of the
new programs mentioned above. I
encourage you to check the BFO

beef industry stakeholders by laying
the foundation for the promotion of
all Ontario beef and beef products.
Our efforts in this area are aimed at
supporting both the Joint Marketing
Committee and the Ontario Beef
Marketing Strategy, as well as individual
farmers, brands, retailers, etc. 2019
was a busy year spent predominantly
on content creation, which included
the launch of a new consumer website
“ontbeef.ca”, development and growth
of our consumer-focused social media
accounts, special consumer events,
and photography and video design and
production.
While 2019 was predominantly a year of
foundational work and building content
that we can take out to consumers, in
2020 we will continue to create content
to add to our growing library. Moreover,
we will be putting the strategy into
motion, building our audience, forming
more partnerships, buying media and
really taking our message out to the

BFO ANNUAL REPORT 2020		
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MESSAGE FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
CONTINUED
people of Ontario. As you know, BFO has

On the staffing front, BFO has been very

look ahead to 2020 and beyond, both as an

done a significant amount of consumer

fortunate to maintain a stable and capable

organization and as a sector on things that

research which is being used to inform where

group of qualified staff for many years

need to be accomplished.

and to whom we target. This market research

without much turnover. However, this year we

is allowing us to be very strategic and specific

really experienced a buck in that trend as a

in order to get the most out of our dollars

number of tenured staff members announced

spent.

retirements, including long-time Executive

Aside from our focus on marketing, and
consumer and producer engagement, I was
happy to finally see our vision for a new
Ontario Beef Research Centre in Elora come
to fruition with the grand opening of the new
facilities this fall. What started out as a plan
to replace an outdated cow-calf research
barn transitioned into a redevelopment and
modernization plan to completely revitalize
the Ontario Beef Research Centre. I’m thrilled
to finally see that vision come to reality.
Expanded, modern research capacity will
allow our sector to conduct beef research
on a meaningful and integrated scale for
years to come, encompassing everything
from environmental sustainability, forage
productivity, genetics, animal health and
welfare, to food safety and beef quality. The
Centre will also provide a valuable training
ground for the next generation of beef
students and researchers. Also, the BFO
Board continued its commitment to beef
research through the re-launch and increased
investment in the BFO Research Investment
Strategy and a call for research proposals
was issued in late fall.

10 I
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Assistant Cathy Golubienko, BFO’s Check-off
Enforcement Inspector Andy Millar, and BFO’s
Executive Director Dave Stewart who had
held the position for close to fifteen years.
I would like thank Cathy, Andy, and Dave
for their tremendous service to BFO and
the producers of this province. In particular,

The following actions represent the priorities
that I view as needing the most attention
heading into 2020-21:
1. C
 ontinue to lobby aggressively for
increased investment in the Ontario
Risk Management Program and for
improvements to the national suite of BRM
programs.
2. C
 ontinue to advocate for immediate and

I would like to thank Dave Stewart for his

long-term solutions to help address the

outstanding leadership and dedication to the

lack of sufficient processing capacity and

Ontario beef industry, and for the mentorship

competition for cattle in eastern Canada.

he provided me personally for the better part
of the last decade.

3. Continue to develop, define, and execute
the Ontario Beef Marketing Strategy in

Dave provided strong and dependable

collaboration with Ontario Cattle Feeders’

management and advice in service to our

Association to increase the market

association and sector throughout his

penetration of Ontario beef at home and

many years at the BFO helm. His many

abroad.

accomplishments and steady management
have left a lasting legacy at BFO, including
having a strong team in place to continue
moving BFO forward. I am confident that the
new additions to BFO’s team will prove to
be valuable assets to the association in the
coming years, and will play an important role
in executing the BFO strategic plan built to
help strengthen the Ontario beef industry.
Having looked back on 2019 we must also

4. Increase our investment and focus on
the development of activities, events
and projects aimed at directly supporting
producers and engaging our consumer
base.
The PC government’s commitment to
increase the investment in the Ontario
Risk Management Program by $50 million,
beginning in 2021, is a positive step toward

achieving these goals and we will continue
to work with Minister Hardeman and his staff
to fulfill this promise.
I would like to thank the Executive Director
Hiring Committee and the 2019-20 Board
of Directors for the confidence and faith
they have in my leadership skills to oversee
operations of the association and to execute
the direction of the board. I have enjoyed
working on your behalf for the better part of
the last ten years, and I relish the opportunity
to continue the great work of the talented
individuals that have come before me, most
notably Charlie Gracie, Graeme Hedley, Mike
McMorris, and Dave Stewart.
In closing, I would be remiss if I did not
acknowledge the tremendous work of the
BFO staff, who keep the wheels turning on
a daily basis. Thank you for your support
and for your dedication to the producers
of this province. I would also like to thank
outgoing President Joe Hill for his leadership
in support of the Ontario and Canadian beef
industry. Joe was a tremendous leader and
forceful advocate for the members. I wish
Joe all the best in whatever he chooses to
fill his time with next. It has been a pleasure
working with you and for you.
Respectfully submitted,
Richard Horne
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

BFO ANNUAL REPORT 2020		

I 11

BFO STAFF
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RICHARD HORNE
Executive Director
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richard@ontariobeef.com
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jill@ontariobeef.com
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Office Administrator
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Manager of
Communications & Marketing
x 230
leaanne@ontariobeef.com

JENNIFER KYLE
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crfeederfin@wightman.ca
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between Ontario Corn Fed Beef and Kinsho

GOVERNMENT RELATIONS

Supermarkets, which will assist in the
continued growth of Ontario Corn Fed Beef
product presence in Kinsho stores throughout
Japan. The trade mission was capped off by

This year, BFO’s policy team continued to

in the Ontario Risk Management Program

monitor, research and respond to a high

(RMP).

an Ontario beef reception at the Canadian

Directors and staff also encouraged

retailers, and food service representatives

government to reduce the red tape around

attended the event, where they enjoyed

the Crown land disposition process for

Ontario beef and pork products.

volume of legislative proposals, bills, and
proposed policy and program changes
affecting beef farmers at both levels of
government. In addition, BFO’s Board of
Directors maintained an aggressive schedule
for meeting with Members of Parliament
(MPs) and Members of Provincial Parliament
(MPPs) to keep the priorities for Ontario’s
beef industry top-of-mind with decisionmakers.

agriculture, and to commit to continuing
the work that was started by the previous
government to support beef expansion in the
north. Expansion of community pastures was
another topic of discussion, with directors and
staff asking that some of the land currently
owned by the Crown or held by government

Policy and advocacy activities in 2019

agencies be sold or leased to the Association

focused on number of issues, including

of Community Pastures of Ontario to facilitate

federal humane transportation regulations,

the creation of new community pastures,

trespassing legislation and regulations,

particularly for northern and eastern Ontario.

Ontario’s Wildlife Damage Compensation

Finally, BFO urged the government to

Program, provincial meat processing

continue to collaborate with and involve

regulations and enforcement, the Beef

the livestock organizations in discussions

Cattle Financial Protection Program, the

related to the new animal welfare legislation,

Nutrient Management Act, the ethanol

and to pursue new measures to protect

content mandate, animal welfare legislation

farmers, processors and transporters against

and enforcement, regulatory and inspection

trespassers and individuals impeding the

cooperation with the United States, SRM

transport of livestock. BFO was pleased to

removal policies and the enhanced feed

see many of our recommendations reflected

ban, BSE risk status, market access and

in the new Provincial Animal Welfare Services

trade, access to veterinarians and livestock

(PAWS) Act, and in the Security from Trespass

medicines, and Business Risk Management

and Protecting Food Safety Act that was

programming, among others.

introduced this year. Similar topics and

On May 29th, BFO hosted its 14th Annual
Queen’s Park Beef Barbecue on the south
lawn of the legislature. Ontario Corn Fed Beef

issues were discussed at BFO lobby days at
Queen’s Park in November, December and
January.

tenderloin was served to over 600 attendees,

In October, BFO’s Executive Director, Richard

including MPPs and their staff. Minister

Horne, and Vice-President, Rob Lipsett, along

Ernie Hardeman was joined by Premier Ford

with John Baker, Director of Ontario Beef

at the carving table with BFO President,

Market Development, joined Ontario Minister

Joe Hill. NDP leader Andrea Horwath and

Ernie Hardeman and Minister Raymond Cho

NDP agriculture critic, John Vanthof, also

on an agricultural trade mission to South

participated in slicing beef. In addition to

Korea and Japan along with representatives

the highly anticipated beef barbecue, BFO

from the pork and grains sectors.

directors and staff personally met with a
number of MPPs and Ministers throughout
the day to advocate for increased investment
14 I
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In Japan, BFO was pleased to take part
in the collaborative signing agreement

Embassy in Tokyo. Over 100 beef importers,

The mission provided important opportunities
for BFO representatives to emphasize the
need to diversify and expand our presence
in key export markets, given the escalating
trade disruptions and barriers the Ontario
beef sector has faced in recent years in
China, Saudi Arabia, the U.S., and the E.U., in
particular.
On November 4th, BFO and members of the
Ontario Agriculture Sustainability Coalition
(OASC) held a lobby day and reception at
Queen’s Park to promote RMP and the need
for increased funding. At the reception,
Minister Hardeman publicly committed to
fulfilling the promise of adding an additional
$50 million to the RMP budget, beginning
in 2021. Although increased funding will
be a welcomed development, BFO has and
continues to stress the need to bring that
commitment forward to help offset some of
the deep losses that the industry incurred in
2019, particularly in the feedlot sector. The
need for immediate additional support for
RMP, in light of recent market disruptions,
lack of sufficient processing capacity, and
prolonged depressed market prices was the
focus of our presentation and submission
to the Standing Committee on Finance and
Economic Affairs in January.
On the federal front, BFO directors were
in Ottawa leading up to and following the
federal election in October to meet with
MPs and federal officials to discuss issues
facing our industry. Priority discussion items
for Ontario included processing capacity in
Eastern Canada, transport regulations, BSE

Hardeman to fulfill Premier Ford’s campaign
promise to increase RMP funding by $50
million, beginning in 2021.
 chieved an increase in compensation
•A
values for beef calves killed by eligible
predators under the revised Ontario Wildlife
Damage Compensation Program.
•H
 elped obtain the repeal of the fiveyear renewal requirement for nutrient
management strategies under the Nutrient
Management Act.
•O
 btained support for a number of
recommendations that were ultimately
risk status, improved and equitable BRM
programs, and enhanced market access and

• Minister Hardeman’s Agricultural
Roundtables on:

trade. Following the election of a minority

- Mental Health

Liberal government, we were pleased to

- Young Farmers

see that Prime Minister Trudeau reappointed
Hon. Marie Claude Bibeau as Minister of

- Red Tape Reduction

Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada as she

- Meat Processing Regulations

has been supportive of our industry and

- Risk Management Programming

has committed to ensure that business risk
management programming strengthens the
viability of beef farming in Ontario. Lobbying
activities took place in collaboration with CCA
in March, April, May, June, and December. In
August, Minister Bibeau took part in a tour
of Ontario farms, including a stop at a beef
feedlot in Bruce County. Candid discussions
with the Minister took place around the
impending transportation regulations,
processing capacity concerns, Canada’s
application to the OIE to reduce our BSE
risk status, and the need to align our SRM
removal requirements with those in the U.S.
BFO directors and staff also took part in a
number of other key events and agricultural
roundtables in 2019 to discuss issues of
priority for the sector, including:
• Consulate Generals’ Taste of Ontario event
at Premier Ford’s residence
• Federal-Provincial-Territorial Meetings of the
Premiers in Toronto

• Standing Committee on Finance 2020 PreBudget Consultations
• P.C. Caucus Reception with Premier Ford
and the Ontario Cabinet prior to the start of
the International Plowing Match

incorporated or reflected in the new PAWS
Act.
•P
 romoted the need for enhanced
trespassing and livestock transport
interference penalties, which helped lead
to the development and introduction of the
Security from Trespass and Protecting Food
Safety Act.
The BFO Board of Directors recognizes that
continued engagement with politicians, at all
levels and in all parties, on issues that matter
to Ontario beef farmers is important and
vital to the sustainability of our industry. Our
director’s value the working relationships they

Although there are a number of priorities

have developed with MPs, MPPs and senior

that BFO will continue to pursue or attempt

political staff, and are grateful when they can

to resolve with government, 2019 did

meet with them so they are able to make

provide a number of positive outcomes and

informed policy decisions affecting Ontario’s

developments for Ontario beef producers,

beef industry.

which speaks to the amount of time and
energy BFO directors and staff put in to

Grassroots lobbying can also be an effective

advocate on your behalf, including:

means of getting our message on the

• Helped obtain a two-year delay in

MPPs want to listen to, help and advocate

federal and provincial agendas. MPs and

enforcement of new maximum intervals

for their constituents. The BFO Board of

without feed, water and rest (FWR) for

Directors encourages all of its members,

cattle in transit under the revised humane

whatever riding you are in, to identify the

transportation regulations.

most important needs and concerns for your

• Helped reverse the proposed repeal of the
Line Fences Act.
• Achieved public commitment from Minister

farming operation. Then prepare to meet
with them! Feel free to call the BFO office
as the staff would be happy to help with any
additional information or speaking notes.
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RESEARCH &
INNOVATION
The New Ontario Beef Research Centre
Construction of the new Ontario Beef Research Centre was
completed in the summer of 2019. The facility includes 165,000
square feet between two barns, with accommodations for 288
mature cows and 120 heifers. In order to facilitate top-quality
research, the facility also includes 300 acres of upgrade
pasture, 184 feed intake monitoring systems, a genomics
lab, greenhouse gas monitoring equipment, rumen sensors
to monitor pH and temperature, and low-stress handling
equipment. Research at the facility focuses on feed, nutrition,
meat quality, animal welfare, genetics, reproduction and
performance. Construction is now underway on the new feedlot
facility at the Centre, with plans to open in 2021. BFO provided
$1.5 million toward the facility.

BFO Research Program
The overarching goal of the BFO Beef Research Program is to
increase the development, adaptation, assessment, and easy
adoption of on-farm technologies that help beef producers
respond to changing demands, and to quantify and investigate
emerging issues of importance to the Ontario and broader
Canadian beef industry. BFO committed $200,000 per year
for the next three years (2020-2022) to the research program.
With the assistance of the Livestock Research and Innovation
Corporation (LRIC), the BFO Research Committee met to
discuss the current status of research in Ontario and in Canada.
As a result, the following research priorities were discussed and
established by the Committee for this call:
• Animal health and welfare
• Antimicrobial use, resistance and alternatives
• Food safety
• Forages
• Environmental sustainability
• Other (nutrition and feed efficiency, beef and meat quality)
A call for research proposals was initiated in October 2019 and
projects will be selected in March 2020. Each project will be
accompanied by a knowledge translation and communication
plan to ensure that results are communicated to producers.
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January 2020 - Up and Running
Construction on the new cow-calf facility was completed in
September 2019. Cattle moved into the barns at the end of that
month. Construction has now begun on Phase II, which includes
the redevelopment of the feedlot facility.

July 2019

October 2018

April 2019

BFO ANNUAL REPORT 2020		

I 17

COMMUNICATIONS & PRODUCER ENGAGEMENT
Ontario Beef Magazine

activities. In 2019, 38 counties and districts

A warm thanks to all of our farm hosts and

Ontario Beef was published five times in

received a total return of just under

speakers for taking the time to participate in

2019 (February, May, August, October and

$120,000. Qualifying producer applications in

this valuable program.

December) and distributed to approximately

2019 ranged from educational workshops to

16,000 of BFO’s members, industry partners,

bus trips, while consumer activities included

MPs and MPPs. The magazine provides

fall fair involvement, local beef promotions

members of BFO and industry stakeholders

and community sponsorship.

with timely information, updates on current

Grazing Cover Crop Field Days

industry issues, upcoming events, market
statistics and more. We continue to update
our circulation database to better reflect our
active and current membership data with the
goal of ensuring all active members of BFO
are receiving this publication. If you have
had interruptions in receiving Ontario Beef,
please contact the BFO office to verify your

In an effort to continue sharing with farmers
ideas to be innovative and farm sustainably,
BFO and OMAFRA ran another series of
field days in the fall of 2019. Held in Brant
and Lambton counties, the events had a
combined participation of over 40 farmers.
The interactive field days gave beef farmers

bfoUP
Building off of the initial success in 2018, BFO
has continued to develop a young producer
networking group for existing and beginning
farmers who are interested in establishing
and expanding beef operations in Ontario.
Through this initiative, BFO hosted a number
of webinars for interested farmers throughout
the year. Special thanks to all of our speakers
for their willingness to participate and share
their thoughts and insights on various topics.

the opportunity to see cover crops put to

A bfoUP resource webpage on the BFO

use as pasture for beef cattle. Cover crops

website houses detailed information and

have important environmental and economic

descriptions of resources and programs

value, and these workshops featured

available to farmers. This page provides

farmers and speakers who could share

easy-to-find information and connects

their knowledge on the tools and resources

farmers with available opportunities. BFO

potential advertisers.

available to help integrate cattle into cover

staff continue to field many questions and
inquiries from young and beginning farmers

Bull-etin Board E-Newsletter

cropping systems as an additional business
opportunity.

who are looking for information on beef

complete mailing address. As of February
2020, Ontario Beef is now also available
digitally on the BFO website. The addition
of the online edition will allow BFO to more
broadly and easily share the information and
articles, and will add value for existing and

The Bull-etin Board e-newsletter was issued
weekly to our subscribers in 2019. The

Beef Youth Development Program

farming and how to enter the sector.

BFO continues to support and encourage

Producer Events and Workshops

the involvement of young farmers in the

Over the course of 2019, BFO planned,

Ontario beef industry. As an example of this,

attended and/or facilitated a number of

BFO hosted the Beef Youth Development

producer-focused events and workshops,

please visit www.ontariobeef.com to sign up.

Program again in 2019, a program offered

including:

Sharecost Program

18-35. In July, the program welcomed 15

e-newsletter captures the headlines of the
week, news releases, upcoming events and
weekly market information. If you would like
to receive The Bull-etin Board in your inbox,

to beef enthusiasts between the ages of

The Sharecost Program continues to be

participants to Huron County to participate

a well-utilized program in support of local

in farm tours, hear from industry speakers

producer and consumer engagement

and analyze various farm business models.
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•B
 FO is pleased to have been part of wellattended Beef Symposiums in January 2019
and January 2020.
•T
 wo “Protecting Yourself Against Special

2019/2020 Webinar Results
Webinar

Farmers of Ontario have donated $180,000,
and since the program’s inception in 2014,

Speaker(s)

Total Views

No.

BFO and Feed Ontario have provided over
340,000 servings of fresh ground beef to

1

Barb Caswell, Cost-Share Opportunities – Get More Bang

31

2

James & Joan McKinlay, Mentoring the Next Generation

53

3

Steve Eby, Eby Farms and Dan Darling, Darling Farms,

34

for Your Buck

Ontario Risk Management Program

Ontario families in need.
BFO’s support for local food banks is directed
towards the purchase of fresh beef products
from Ontario’s farmers and is leveraged
for matching funds from industry partners.

4

Mike Swidersky, Ontario Community Pasture

27

5

Adam & Marie Shea, Shealand Farms

57

6

Doug Gray & Bonnie Wilson, Piper Creek Farms

20

7

Scot & Jennifer Legge, Legge Beef Farms

27

relief agencies across the province, serving

249

over 507,000 adults and children annually.

TOTAL
All webinars are recorded and can be accessed from the BFO website.
Interest Groups” workshops were

• An open house was held at the new Ontario

presented in conjunction with Farm & Food

Beef Research Centre in September to

Care Ontario in June and in September.

showcase the new facility to producers and

• The Cow-Calf Management School
(formerly the Cow-Calf Roadshow) was well-

the broader beef industry.
• In December, BFO is hosted Industry Service

attended with an engaged group of over 80

Updates for industry representatives from

producers in Bruce County in August. The

feed and animal health companies to update

school consisted of an in-class day where

them on opportunities for Ontario beef

participants received a condensed version

producers and BFO initiatives.

of the Ranching for Profit course, and a
day of farm tours. As a complement to the
Cow-Calf Management School, a Feedlot
Management School is being planned for
March 2020.
• The Carcass 101 program was brought back

• The inaugural Young Producer Development
program held at the BFO AGM in 2019 was
an overwhelming success with over 20
young producers participating. The program
received a lot of positive feedback and
ideas, which has been used to shape the

in December and was hosted in partnership

program for 2020 to encourage further

with OMAFRA and the University of Guelph.

youth development at the AGM.

•E
 xtension work via a guest lecture with
the Beef Production class at Ridgetown

Partnership with Feed Ontario
In 2019, BFO committed $20,000 in financial

Through our joint partnership with Feed
Ontario, we have distributed nearly 56,000
pounds of fresh ground beef to 1,200 hunger-

Sponsorship & Events
BFO continued its support of a number of
initiatives throughout 2019. Participating in
tradeshows provides an excellent avenue to
connect with members to address industry
concerns, and to meet with consumers to
resolve misconceptions on food safety and
beef farming practices. BFO participated in
and/or supported the following events and
initiatives in 2019:
• AgScape
• Beef Industry Convention
• Beef Symposium
• Discovery Days – 4-H Ontario
• Canada’s Outdoor Farm Show
• Canadian National Exhibition
• East Central and Earlton Farm Shows
• Grey Bruce Farmers’ Week
• Junior Beef Heifer Show
• OAC Beef Science Club
• Ontario Outstanding Young Farmers
Program

College was well-received. The Producer

support to continue its partnership with Feed

• Profitable Pastures Conference

Engagement team has plans to speak at the

Ontario (formerly the Ontario Association of

• Royal Agriculture Winter Fair

new Eastern Ag College in 2020 as well.

Food Banks). Over the last five years, Beef

• Youth Forum
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JOINT MARKETING COMMITTEE
It has been a very busy and exciting

The plan includes strong linkages to

first year of operation for the newly

the beef processing sector in Ontario. A

formed Joint Marketing Committee. I am

strong processing sector is vital to Ontario

pleased to provide this report on the

beef farmers and a vital link to creating

committee’s activities from our first year of

demand pull for high volumes of Ontario

development and the first couple months

Beef from the farm gate through to the

of implementation.

consumer.

The development of the Joint Marketing

Since the direction was approved to move

Strategy represents a new level of

forward with the new initiative in February

collaboration in the Ontario beef industry

2019, much work was required to begin

and a significant shift in the development,

to develop a strategy that would provide

implementation and measurement of

direct benefits to Ontario beef farmers.

check-off investments made in marketing
initiatives. This shift is a direct result of the
leadership position being taken by the
boards of directors of both Beef Farmers
of Ontario (BFO) and the Ontario Cattle
Feeders Association (OCFA) as a direct
response to the ever-increasing gap in the
development and support of provincially
focused initiatives in Ontario.
The beef industry in Ontario faces
increasing pressures from diverse
import competitors, while at the same
time coping with significant competitive
challenges, including cost of production
and economies of scale disadvantages
in the North American market, which
requires a unique strategy to provide
benefits to Ontario beef farmers.

20 I

BFO ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Since the check-off increase came into
effect on November 1, 2019, the strategy
is now fully funded and we are officially in
full implementation mode of the Ontario
Beef Market Development program.

Our Vision is to have Ontario
Beef recognized and valued
by our industry partners and
consumers around the world
Our Mission is to create an
environment where Ontario
Beef farmers are profitable
and sustainable for future
generations.

I want to thank the committee members,
Rob Lipsett, Jason Reid, Craig McLaughlin,
Jack Chaffe, Dale Pallister and Mike
Conlin, for their willingness to provide
strong leadership and direction to the
strategy.
We are confident we have a very
comprehensive and industry aligned
strategy to deliver measurable value for
check-off investment.

Since November 1st, we have been
engaging with Ontario industry partners
in the processing, retail and distribution
sectors to identify opportunities for growth
in branded Ontario Beef.
The local Ontario market is our highest
priority, and efforts will focus on increasing
the share of Ontario branded beef in our
local communities.

After several years of steady decline, we

significant opportunities to increase the

are projected to increase by 147 per cent

have seen Ontario fed slaughter volumes

overall value of Ontario beef carcasses.

since 2015. That timeframe corresponds

and inventory numbers of slaughter cattle

Canfax Research Services estimates over

to when Ontario first began an export

stabilized since 2012. Since that time,

$600 or 38 per cent of a fed carcass value

marketing initiative through the Ontario

we have also seen a steady decline in

is driven by export markets.

Corn Fed Beef program.

Ontario beef exports have increased

I look forward to meeting and talking with

significantly during the period from

my fellow beef farmers and discussing

2008 to 2018 when Ontario’s share of all

how the Joint Marketing Committee is

Canadian beef exports increased to 30

working to deliver value for your check-off

per cent from 15 per cent.

investment.

2019 Ontario Beef Exports are projected

Respectfully submitted,

imports while at the same time, Ontario
production’s share of consumption has
increased. All of these statistics point to
strong rational for the increased marketing
efforts we have undertaken.
A key aspect of the new initiative is our
focus on international markets. This
strategy also includes international growth
opportunities, and we have been very
active in many key export markets.
Ontario Beef products will be marketed

to see another year of strong growth with
export value expected to top 93 million
kilograms in volume and $650 Million

Jim Clark
CEO – JOINT MARKETING COMMITTEE

in value. In our primary export market of
Japan, Ontario’s export volumes for 2019

as a unique brand of Canadian beef in
many key export markets including Japan,
China, Vietnam, Korea, Saudi Arabia and
the United Arab Emirates, as well as the
European Union and the United States.
Other potential markets include the
Philippines, Indonesia and Singapore.
Global demand for beef is very strong,
and these are markets where Ontario
Corn Fed Beef has generated tremendous
market growth. We believe there is strong
potential to build off that success with
additional branded Ontario beef.
Many producers ask why we need to build
export markets when we cannot increase
slaughter capacity in the province. The
value of export markets is they provide
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CONSUMER ENGAGEMENT
Twenty-five cents of the $1.50 check-

develop a marketing strategy, which kicked

the office for those wishing to have their

off increase, which was implemented

off in December 2019 and will continue

retail business added to the map.

November 1, 2019, stays with BFO

to build into 2020. The goal is primarily

to support producer and consumer

to build awareness among consumers,

engagement work. As such, a lot of work

and secondarily to drive traffic to the new

was done in 2019 to re-brand the former

website – www.ontbeef.ca. The strategy

Make it Ontario Beef identity, create a

developed with the agency centres

new logo and consumer website, and

around three central themes: 1) Inspired

reintroduce Ontario beef to consumers.

Deliciousness, 2) My Local, and 3) Gather

As part of the website and consumer
strategy, a new e-newsletter for Ontario
beef enthusiasts will launch in early 2020.

Social media

and drive traffic to the website.

The focus was on developing
the Ontario Beef social media
channels for the first half of
2019, while the second half
of the year was maintenance
and strategy-building for the
relaunch in December.

There is a lot of great content on the site,

Our focus has been on Instagram and

but most exciting and useful is the “store

Pinterest to this point with plans to expand

locator” feature. This is a Google Map

into Facebook. We also still have Twitter,

Ontario Beef exists to:

search function that points consumers in

which will continue to be used when

the direction of stores, butcher shops, on-

appropriate.

1. Support local beef industry and create

farm stores, farmer’s markets, online stores

Ontario Beef – as it is now called – is

Round.

the consumer-facing brand that engages

2019 was a busy year spent predominantly

directly with the public to drive awareness

on content creation. Some of the activities

and purchase of Ontario beef. Ontario

undertaken throughout 2019 were:

Beef supports all Ontario beef industry
stakeholders by laying the foundation
for the promotion of ALL Ontario beef
products and the entire industry. Whether
it is materials or messaging, at the end of
the day, all of our efforts focus on Ontario
beef consumers. Our efforts support
both the Joint Marketing Committee and
their efforts, as well as individual farmers,
brands, retailers, etc.

enthusiasm for buying local beef
2. Increase awareness of benefits of
Ontario beef
3. Increase purchase of Ontario beef

New Consumer website
The new website, www.ontbeef.ca, is
now live and a social media launch
campaign was run from Dec. 16 – Jan. 11
to reintroduce consumers to Ontario Beef

and farmers who sell direct to consumers.
The search uses postal codes to generate
a list of the closest establishments to the
consumer.

Over the holiday season, we undertook
our first Ontario Beef paid social media
campaign with the help of our marketing
agency. We partnered with three social
media influencers and had them focus the

Currently, there are about 100 retailers

content they created around the theme

4. Increase trust for consumption of beef

included in the locator, but we recognize

“Gather Round”, which is a theme that tied

there are others who may wish to be

nicely with the holidays. Each influencer

BFO staff have secured the services of

included in the listing. Now that the website

put their own spin on the theme, which was

Bob’s Your Uncle Agency from Toronto to

is live, an application form is available from

very well-received.
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Here are a couple highlight stats on our Instagram campaign:

success over the course of 2020 and
beyond, so stay tuned for future updates
and be sure to follow us on social media.

Our content reached
1,554,172 unique users

Event Participation
BFO participated with booths at the CNE
and Royal Agricultural Winter Fair (Aug.
and Nov.), and took part in Farm & Food
Care Ontario events, including Farmers &
Food Trucks (local food week in June) and
Ontario Agriculture Week (Oct. at Toronto
Union Station). BFO also partnered with
Canada Beef on their sponsorship of the
Pinty’s Grand Slam of Curling in Toronto in
April.
We also attended the Nutrition

The posts drove 1,954
views of our landing
page & 119,978
engagements

Connections Conference in collaboration
with ON Common Ground and Canada
Beef. This was the first time beef had
a presence at this health-focused
conference. BFO was integral in the
planning of a panel discussion that
featured three Ontario farmers, including
beef farmer Sandra Vos, and was
monitored by Dr. June Matthews of
Brescia College’s dietetics program.

While the influencer campaign was

• Our “click through rate” was 0.55%,

running on Instagram, we ran an ad

which is 0.12% higher than the average

campaign on Pinterest with three of our

in dairy, produce, meat and bakery

own recipe ads. These ads would be

goods

seen by those people who fit our target
demographic and searched for a number
of different keywords as defined by the
agency. Again, this short campaign was
very successful, and a great test for our
future campaigns.
•O
 ur ads garnered over 12.5K clicks
through to our website

Most recently, BFO partnered with
Canadian Cattlemen’s Association, Farm
& Food Care Ontario and Ontario Sheep
Farmers to present “Feeding a Sustainable

Before we had put any money behind

Toronto” at the Royal Ontario Museum.

any of the content on our site, our

The evening featured a screening of

content generated 106,936 engagements

Guardians of the Grasslands, videos of

organically. What this tells us is that

both the 2018 and 2019 TESA winners,

there is a great appetite for Ontario Beef

and a panel discussion focusing on the

content out there and that putting our

role that grazing animals, like beef and

money behind great content works. We

sheep, play in a healthy ecosystem.

look forward to building on this initial

The event was well-attended by social
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CONSUMER ENGAGEMENT

CONTINUED

media influencers, dieticians, media and

produce five separate photoshoots to

consumers.

capture these lifestyle shots. We now have

With the help of our marketing agency,
Bob’s Your Uncle Agency, BFO is currently
reviewing our participation in various
events to make sure we are at the right
events going forward to best engage with

some great imagery to accompany the
food shots, and we have plans to continue
to build this photo library moving forward.

Research
Some of the most frequently questions

the people we need to get in front of.

about beef are regarding the environment.

Video production

How much does beef contribute to climate

We have created a number of different
videos, including an Ontario Beef “flagship
video”. This video will be used as a
commercial on YouTube, as well as being
circulated through other channels. We
completed eight new recipe videos, a
TESA video featuring 2019 winner Steve
Sickle, and a couple of animated videos
built around the “wondering about” series
on animal care and what cattle eat. We
are also in the process of completing a
few short environmentally focused clips.
Video is the way to go for communicating,

change? Does beef pollute our water
systems? Through consumer research,
we know many consumers want to be
reassured that they don’t need to feel

In this project, a broad literature review

guilty about eating beef. And we also

was conducted by Dr. Jeremy Pittman

know there are many vocal critics of beef

of University of Waterloo, assessing and

due to inaccurate perceptions of beef

compiling existing peer-reviewed science

harming the environment. Through Ontario

that describes the environmental benefits

Beef, we strive to be open, confident and

of Ontario beef production and agricultural

transparent about how beef is produced

grasslands in key areas: carbon storage

because we have a great story to share.

and sequestration, soil health, biodiversity,

Ontario beef production actually benefits

wildlife habitat, and pollinator health. The

the environment in numerous ways.

project has provided us with credible
science we can use when answering

so there will be more video production

Unfortunately, a lot of the existing

consumers questions, and has also

happening in 2020 to continue to build the

research that helps us answer consumers’

identified research gaps.

library.

environment questions can be hard to

Photography
As we began to build the Ontario Beef
brand, it became evident that, while there
are plenty of beef “glamour” food shots
and lots of farm photos, there was a
significant shortage of images showcasing
people cooking and enjoying beef in
different situations. To help fill this gap,
BFO partnered with Canada Beef to
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find or communicate with consumers,

The evidence and information gathered in

is too general, or is not based on the

the literature review has formed the basis

Ontario beef system. With this in mind,

of the new Ontario Beef: Our Environment

BFO undertook a project in 2019 called

Accord communications plan and

the “Environmental Value of Ontario Beef

messaging. This unique initiative brings

Production and Agricultural Grasslands”.

together a portfolio of created content

This project was funded in part through

and materials on environmental topics in

the Canadian Agricultural Partnership (the

various formats, including short articles

Partnership), a federal-provincial-territorial

and video. The environment section of

initiative.

the new ontbeef.ca website will house all

content that is part of Ontario Beef: Our
Environment Accord.

Through strategic messaging
and content that is based on
credible science, all Ontario
beef stakeholders will be
better equipped to answer
questions and refute claims
about the environmental
impact of beef.
Education

ensure all materials are up to date and

be targeted toward the urban centres,

vetted by industry experts.

particularly the GTA. This means that

BFO partnered with Mushrooms Canada

2019 was predominantly a year of

and Grain Farmers of Ontario on the Future

foundational work and building content

Foodies Pilot Program in the spring of

we can take out to consumers. In 2020,

2019. The program provided 30 75-minute

we will continue to create content to

hands-on cooking classes in schools in the

add to our now growing library, but more

Greater Toronto Area. The program and

importantly, we will be putting the strategy

agricultural information were well-received

into motion, building our audience, forming

and the beef taco salad recipe featured

partnerships, buying media and really

was typically the most popular.

taking our message out to the people of
Ontario.

BFO continues to support AgScape and
build a more robust and collaborative

As a reminder, BFO has done a significant

relationship between our organizations.

amount of consumer research, so therefore

As such, BFO is currently in the process of

we are able to be very strategic and

reviewing all of the resources relevant to

targeted with where we put our message

beef production to ensure the messaging is

in order to get the most out of our dollars

accurate and representative of the industry.

spent. As a result, the vast majority of

This is part of AgScape’s commitment to

our consumer engagement work will

producers may not see a billboard in their
hometown, or ads in their local paper
– realistically, we don’t have the dollars
that some of our other commodity friends
have, so blanketing the province is not an
option. BUT the good thing is that because
we have a more modest budget, a large
portion of our marketing dollars will be
used for digital marketing. So, please follow
us on social media and our new website
to see what we are up to. We have also
committed to providing regular updates
on our activities in our magazine, so watch
there for information as well.
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COMMITTEE REPORTS

looked at quantifying and promoting
the environmental benefits of beef and
grasslands.

BFO Cow-Calf Committee

and resources for cow-calf producers

Submitted by Jamie O’Shea, Chair

regarding cost of production and

The BFO Cow-Calf Committee met two

communication and promotion of these

times since the AGM last February. Both

tools to cow-calf producers.

were face-to-face meetings held at BFO’s
office in Guelph. I served as Chair and Greg

profitability, as well as regarding

Calf Management School for 2019, a new

A summary of committee actions and

education based on the “Ranching from

recommendations has been provided for

Profit” program, which includes a focus on

your review below.

business and profitability in the cow-calf

efforts by BFO to investigate and lobby

event that incorporated farm tours and

sector.
 iscussed and provided feedback on
•D

for province-wide coordinated action

the impacts of the processing capacity

and a strategy for recycling agricultural

shortage on the cow-calf sector.

plastics, such as silage plastic.
• Discussed and provided feedback on
provincial meat inspection regulations
and their enforcement, including in
regards to E.coli, collection of OTM
materials, and the interpretation of rules
by inspectors regarding OTM animals and
hide collection based on blood splatter.
• Discussed and provided feedback on the
OMAFRA “Special Calf Sales Analysis”
project and communication with cow-calf
producers regarding the value of special
calf sales.
• Provided feedback and participants for
grassland bird projects, specifically on
the on-farm impacts and perceptions
regarding conservation practices for
Bobolink and Eastern Meadowlark.
• Provided feedback on economic tools
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committee members for committing
their time and energy to the Cow-Calf
Committee this year, and to the BFO staff
who supported the committee’s business.

•R
 ecommended and organized the Cow-

Seed served as Vice-Chair for 2019-2020.

• Recommended and supported continued

In closing, I want to thank my fellow

•D
 iscussed and provided feedback on the
new Provincial Animal Welfare Services
Act.

2019 Cow-Calf Committee
Jamie O’Shea
CHAIR
Greg Seed
VICE-CHAIR

Bob Dunsmore
Don Hargrave
Jason Hurst

Don Badour

Kevin Krakar

Craig McLaughlin

Steve Thede

Jason Reid

•R
 ecommended that BFO investigate the
creation of youth delegates to participate
in committee business in an ex-officio
capacity, with the selection criteria to be

BFO Feedlot Committee

formulated and discussed over the next

Submitted by Scott Cochrane, Chair

year.
•H
 eard presentation from OMAFRA on

The BFO Feedlot Committee met three
times since the AGM last February,

the state of forage and grazing research

including two face-to-face meetings and

capacity in the province and discussed

a conference call. Our meeting in August

challenges in this area.

took place at St. Helen’s Meat Packers in

•D
 iscussed and provided feedback on a
video series for Ontario producers about
calf clubs and their value for producers.
In addition, I participated in the advisory
committee that was created by BFO
in support of a research project that

Toronto, and included a tour of the facility
and a lengthy discussion with St. Helen’s
management about a number of issues
facing the feedlot and processing sectors
in Ontario. I served as Chair while Scot
Legge served as Vice-Chair for 2019-20.

A summary of committee actions and

solutions to help address or mitigate

In addition, I represented the Feedlot

recommendations has been provided for

backlogs in processing in Ontario and

Committee as the crossover representative

your review below.

across eastern Canada.

to the Cow-Calf Committee. I also

• Supported the continued involvement

• Recommended that BFO and the

in the CanFax Ontario fed cattle price

Canadian Cattlemen’s Association (CCA)

reporting pilot project, including a

lobby for harmonization of Specified Risk

recommendation to extend the pilot for an

Materials (SRM) removal requirements

additional six months.

with the U.S.

• Created a working group to evaluate the

• Recommended that the Canadian

success and value of the pilot project and

Meat Council (CMC) update SRM costs

to discuss future tools to enhance price

to industry. Previous cost estimates

discovery and price information for fed

were based on 2008 data. This

cattle in Ontario. This work is planned to

recommendation was approved by the

continue into 2020.

BFO board in the fall, and subsequently

• Discussed the release of the Canadian
Food Inspection Agency’s (CFIA) revised
livestock transportation regulations.

• Recommended that BFO financially

Jack Chaffe represented the committee

surveillance of antimicrobial use and

on the national CFIA Humane Transport

antimicrobial resistance in a Canadian

Working Group. Ontario representatives

feedlot cattle project. The BFO board

on this working group called for

approved this recommendation. BFO’s

increased communication, education

application for funding to support this

and training for the industry to ensure

project was approved by the Province.

to delay enforcement of time-in-transit
reductions, and to ensure sufficient reststop station infrastructure is available.
Working group members also provided
feedback on the draft interpretive
guidance document, which underpins
the new regulations and helps inform
both regulated parties and the regulators
themselves about how rules are to be
interpreted.
• Provided feedback on draft processing
capacity recommendations and proposed

research project that looked at quantifying
and promoting the environmental benefits
of beef and grasslands.
In closing, I want to thank my fellow
committee members for dedicating their
time and energy to the Feedlot Committee
this year, and to the BFO staff that
supported the committee’s business.

is encouraging.

support and participate in the national

Recommendations also included the need

that was created by BFO in support of a

agreed to by CMC later in the year, which

Committee members Steve Eby and

all parties understand the new rules.

participated in the advisory committee

• Recommended that BFO investigate
the creation of the opportunity for youth
delegates to participate in committee
business in an ex-officio capacity, with the
selection criteria to be formulated and

2019 Feedlot Committee
Scott Cochrane
CHAIR
Scot Legge
VICE-CHAIR

Paul Brown
Steve Eby
Chris Freiburger

Jack Chaffe

Darrell Russett

Joe Hill

Matt Shortreed

Mert Schneider

discussed over the next year.
• Recommended BFO investigate the
costs of a feasibility study around the
construction of a new medium-sized
federal processing plant in Ontario.
• Recommended the launch of a new
Feedlot Management School to be
offered in the spring of 2020.
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ONTARIO FEEDER CATTLE LOAN
GUARANTEE PROGRAM
In February 2019, Minister Ernie Hardeman

The Feeder Executive Committee

Bill 66, Restoring Ontario’s

announced changes to the Order in

consisting of five representatives from

Competitiveness Act, has been passed

Council for the Ontario Feeder Cattle

the 16 Co-ops and one representative

by the provincial government. Sections

Loan Guarantee Program. Many of the

from BFO. This board is now a committee

relating to moving the Order in Council to

changes positioned the Co-ops to operate

of BFO. Its mandate is to represent the

a Minister’s Order, however, have not yet

within more normal business practices. In

Co-ops with respect to discussions with

been proclaimed.

particular, credit checks can be done less

industry partners, and to be in position to

frequently, Co-ops are now required to

ask BFO to lobby on behalf of the Co-ops.

have 20 paid members, clarification was
provided on the handling of assurance
deposits, and a mechanism is now in
place to handle inventory after the loan is
cleared. Further details on the program can
be found in the guidelines on the ministry’s
website www.omafra.gov.on.ca. Click on
“Program and Services for Farmers.”

On November 6, 2019, the provincial
government also announced it will

Processing capacity in Ontario disrupted

modernize the Co-operative Corporations

normal business activity in the Co-ops

Act, however, no further timelines have

in 2019 as well. Over 10 per cent of our

been shared at this time.

membership has been impacted, and
processing capacity is the main reason
the number of cattle purchased is down.
Overall, activity has been relatively stable
for the past three years.

The Advance Payment Program, which
is offered by BFO via the Feeder Coops, continues to be used by about 330
members. The federal government has
paid an average of $2,250 in interest on
behalf of those members in 2019.

PROGRAM STATISTICS
2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

Number of Co-ops

16

16

16

17

17

Total Membership

802

804

806

844

915

During Year

749

757

730

794

838

As of December 31

599

611

622

652

765

Under Age 40

244

270

292

317

351

1,346

1,312

1,300

1,152

Active Members

Number of Cattle
Purchased in Year

92,748

95,265

97,466

91,631

85,107

Sold in Year

93,363

94,434

95,056

86,872

85,821

On Hand, December 31

70,891

71,337

70,998

68,834

64,182

Outstanding Loans, December 31

$95.3M

$97.7M

$98.3M

$88.0M

$113.0M

Total Amount Committed, December 31

$98.6M

$101.4M

$105.1M

$94.5M

$120.0M

Total loans advanced during year

$131.3M

$125.7M

$136.3M

$126.8 M

$155.9M

Financial
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THE FEEDER CO-OPS AND THEIR ADMINISTRATORS ARE:
ALGOMA			

LAMBTON			

PROVINCIAL SUPERVISOR:

Robin McLeod, Bruce Mines

Joanne Sanderson, Bothwell		

Cheryl Russwurm,

(705) 736-2236

(519) 695-3980

435 Conc. 10 E.

Algoma

Lambton/Essex/Kent/Middlesex/

R. 5, Mildmay, Ont. N0G 2J0

and east and south of 403

(519) 367-5590

BRUCE			

FAX: 367-5607

E-mail: crfeederfin@wightman.ca

Conrad Brubacher, Tara		

NORTHERN CLAYBELT

(519) 934-2666

Carol Elliott, New Liskeard		

East Central Bruce

(705) 647-6161
Temiskaming/S. Cochrane

CENTRAL			
Phyllis Tupling, Shelburne		

QUEEN’S BUSH		

(519) 925-9590

Darryl Diemert, Mildmay		

Simcoe/Dufferin

(519) 367-2077
South East Bruce

EAST CENTRAL		
Brenda Bonis, Lindsay		

RAINY RIVER

(705) 324-5701

Joyous Bragg, Emo		

Durham/Victoria/Peterborough/

(807) 482-3948/2498

Haliburton/Northumberland

Rainy River/Thunder Bay/Kenora

EASTERN ONTARIO

TWIN COUNTY		

Denise Cassidy

Conrad Brubacher, Tara			

(613)478-5226

(519) 934-2666

Hastings/PrinceEdward/

Grey/North Bruce

L&A/Frontenac/Leeds
TWO VALLEYS		
GOLDEN HORSESHOE		

Jim Cochran, Almonte		

Michael Moser, Kitchener		

(613) 256-3835

(519) 570-1684

Prescott/Russell/Glengarry/

Niagara/Waterloo/Wentworth/

Stormont/Dundas/Carleton/Lanark/

Brant/Oxford/Haldimand/Norfolk

Renfrew

HIGH POINT		

WEST BRUCE		

Jenna Coe, Flesherton		

Lindsay Dykeman, Kincardine		

(519) 922-1239

(519) 386-6719

South East Grey

West Bruce

HURON/PERTH		

WEST CENTRAL		

Janice Hawkins-Wylie, Brussels

Alaina Lennox, Kenilworth		

(519) 887-8899

(519) 848-6066

Huron / Perth

Halton/Peel/Wellington
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ONTARIO BEEF BREEDER CO-OPERATIVE PROGRAM
Eight Breeder Co-ops continue to operate across the Province.

per cent. The average loan outstanding per active member ranges

We continue to see new members, with total membership and

from $17,000 in one Co-op to $44,000 in another. The average

inventory similar to 2018. The percentage of membership under

amount owing per active member has decreased to $31,767, which

40 years of age has increased from 28 per cent back up to 37 per

is due to the loans for the expensive “females” of 2015/16 being

cent, which is more typical.

paid down.

There are four Co-ops operating with 30 to 40 active members,

Co-ops are always challenged to meet member needs. The timing

three Co-ops that have 45 to 50 active members, and one larger

of marketing the calf crop does not always align to when loan

co-op with 100 members. The larger Co-op has about 35 per cent

payments are due. This causes added time and stress in keeping

of the provincial business, with other co-ops ranging from five to 14

the Co-op’s obligations to their lender in order.

The Beef Breeder Co-op Program is
co-ordinated by the Beef Farmers of Ontario.
PROVINCIAL SUPERVISOR:
Cheryl Russwurm, 435 Conc. 10 E.
R. 5, Mildmay, Ont. N0G 2J0
519.367.5590

FAX: 367-5607

Email: crfeederfin@wightman.ca
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BRUCE-GREY BEEF COW FINANCE CO-OP
Theresa Cameron (Grey/Bruce)
519.881.9894

EAST BEEF BREEDER CO-OP
Denise Cassidy (Leeds to Victoria County)
613.478.5226

OTTAWA VALLEY BREEDER CO-OP
Jim Cochran (Carleton/Lanark/Renfrew)				
613.256.3835

RAINY RIVER BEEF BREEDER CO-OP
Joyous Bragg (Rainy River, Thunder Bay, Dryden and Kenora)
807.482.3948/2498

SOUTH QUEENS BREEDER FINANCE CO-OP
Darryl Diemert (South Bruce, South Grey, North Huron, Wellington)
519.367.2077

SOUTHWEST BEEF BREEDERS CO-OP
Alex Gray (Lambton/Essex/Kent and east to Norwich area)
226.378.1731

TEMISKAMING/COCHRANE BEEF BREEDER CO-OP
Mike Rheaume (Northeastern Ontario and Manitoulin Island)		
705.648.4536

PROGRAM STATISTICS
YEAR as of June 30th

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

Number of members

403

396

382

346

334

Number of active members

365

359

350

317

308

10,656

10,019

9,387

9,069

7,950

$12.6

$13.4

$12.9

$12.9

$9.11

Average # of females per active member

29

28

27

29

26

# of new members in first 6 months of year

26

29

26

36

33

1,136

1,346

1,312

1,300

1,152

Total cow inventory
Total principal outstanding(million)

# of females purchased in first 6 months
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MARKET STATISTICS
Four Convenient Ways to Access
Market Information from the BFO Office
Website
www.ontariobeef.com

Email

markets@ontariobeef.com

Phone
TF: 866.370.2333
Local: 519.824.0334
Ext. 300 - Daily Report
Ext. 301 - Noon Report

Fax

519.824.9101
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Replacement Steers
1,000 lb +
Ontario Average Monthly Price

Replacement Steers 1000 lbs +

Price per hundred weight

Ontario Average Monthly Price
2017

195.00

2018

2019

185.00
175.00
165.00

Dec

Nov

Oct

Sep

Aug

Jul

Jun

May

Apr

Mar

Feb

Jan

155.00

Replacement Steers
500-599 lb
Ontario Average
Monthly
Price lbs
Replacement
Steers
500-599

Ontario Average Monthly Price

Price per hundred weight

235.00

2017

2018

2019

225.00
215.00
205.00
195.00
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Dec

Nov

Oct

Sep

Aug

Jul

Jun

May

Apr

Mar

Feb

Jan

185.00

Replacement Steers
Ontario Average Monthly Price
Per Hundred
ReplacementWeight
Steers

Ont Average Monthly Price per Hundred Weight
Over 1000 lb.

Month

500 – 600 lb.

2019

2018

2017

2019

2018

2017

January

178.78

178.49

174.51

210.05

215.05

188.89

February

172.95

178.90

169.68

205.67

223.80

186.32

March

166.72

167.54

165.44

198.88

218.68

198.59

April

164.17

158.42

162.14

220.72

207.01

206.40

May

163.87

157.14

172.18

216.34

210.51

222.33

June

157.66

157.97

172.24

207.46

213.80

228.60

July

163.88

161.46

164.29

198.66

212.20

215.61

August

175.46

173.70

166.44

207.49

213.37

201.90

September

170.83

182.32

170.91

206.36

221.07

215.06

October

170.62

185.44

185.39

209.01

219.50

228.34

November

178.06

177.19

194.20

209.84

203.88

234.22

December

173.79

180.71

190.97

216.02

209.92

223.26

Stocker Volume Sold
Stocker Volume
Sold
Through Ontario
Auction
Markets
Through Ontario Auction Markets
260,000

255,000

250,000

Number of head

245,000

240,000

235,000

230,000

225,000

220,000
Stockers

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

242,525

248,379

251,185

243,835

258,755
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Ontario Auction Markets
Large and
Medium
Frame
Fed Steers
Ontario
Auction
Markets
+ Steers 1250 lbs +
Large and Medium1,250
FramelbFed
Ontario Average
Weekly
Price
- Per Hundred
Weight
Average Weekly
Price
Per Hundred
Weight
Week #

2018

2017

Week #

2019

2018

2017

1

142.77

149.27

141.59

27

141.91

138.69

153.37

2

140.02

147.18

146.21

28

143.20

143.17

155.11

3

137.90
141.99

134.36
136.55

141.77
148.72

29

143.23
142.88

138.66
140.69

151.79
145.25

141.66
144.74

144.45
144.44

31

6

142.52
147.32

32

140.85
139.50

140.93
139.12

145.61
145.35

7

146.23

146.24

147.15

33

139.93

138.72

140.85

8

144.15

149.36

146.66

34

138.96

133.07

136.06

9
10

139.67
133.34

147.57
149.14

146.46
150.18

35
36

138.18
138.39

133.02
133.29

128.90
125.13

11

151.20
147.94

158.31
157.53

37

12

131.97
123.68

38

132.24
133.42

133.96
136.76

124.53
123.93

13
14

139.01
140.77

146.19
143.78

159.90
155.80

39
40

130.37
131.66

133.87
138.35

124.70
130.52

15
16

148.51
147.38

139.21
141.79

153.28
159.35

41
42

139.02
133.46

134.72
139.13

131.73
131.64

17
18
19
20

142.85
151.25

142.54
147.05

163.05
167.85

130.60
130.84

134.97
127.81

134.20
134.07

149.07

152.00

177.11

131.47

133.46

139.99

150.41

143.72

173.83

43
44
45
46

130.10

131.83

139.08

21

140.16

143.23

170.62

47

127.28

132.13

136.62

22
23

143.91
144.94

141.98
143.93

172.35
179.00

48
49

129.98
129.99

126.99
130.99

135.87
137.54

24
25

143.55

146.97

174.59

134.50

134.90

135.64

144.19

146.43

166.11

50
51

137.72

134.59

138.98

26

144.23

141.45

161.93

52

137.93

131.23

138.54

4
5

36 I

2019

BFO ANNUAL REPORT 2020

30

Beef Cow Volumes
On Ontario Farms

Beef Cows On Ontario Farms

295,000

270,000

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Jul

Jan

Jul

Jan

Jul

Jan

Jul

Jan

Jul

Jan

Jul

Jan

Jul

Jan

Jul

Jan

Jul

Jan

Jul

Jul

220,000

Jan

245,000

Jan

Total number of head

320,000

2019

Total number of head

Data from Statistics Canada 2019 Cattle Stats Released August 22, 2019

450,000
400,000
350,000
300,000
250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000
50,000

Ontario Annual Processing Volumes
Federal and Provincial Inspected Plants
Ontario Annual Processing Volumes
Federal & Provincial Inspected Plants

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Steers

384,330

415,070

419,877

427,646

415,857

Heifers

136,840

142,245

136,700

137,563

138,027

Cows

70,021

71,224

100,615

114,469

97,262

Data Source- Canfax/CBGA

2019 totals are preliminary
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Ontario Railgrade Steers
Ontario Average Monthly Price

Ontario Railgrade Steers
Average Monthly Price

Price per hundred weight

2017

2018

2019

5 year avg- 2014-2018

290.00
280.00
270.00
260.00
250.00
240.00
230.00
220.00
Dec

Nov

Oct

Sep

Aug

Jul

Jun

May

Apr

Mar

Feb

Jan

210.00

Ontario Railgrade Steers
Estimated Monthly Breakeven vs. Monthly Average Price
Ontario Exports of Beef Products to All Countries

90,000,000

Total Kilograms of Product

85,000,000

80,000,000

75,000,000

70,000,000

65,000,000

60,000,000

55,000,000

50,000,000

United States

2015
Japan

2016
Hong Kong
Mexico

Source: Statistics Canada, Prepared by AAFC/MISB/AID/Redmeat Section
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2017
Korea, South

Peru

2018
Taiwan

2019 - January to November Only.

2019
China
others

Ontario Railgrade Steers
Ontario Packing Plants
Ontario Average Weekly Price
Per Railgrade
HundredSteers
Weight
Ontario Packing Plants

Average Weekly Price per Hundred Weight

Week
#

2019

2018

2017

Week
#

2019

2018

2017

1

247.00

256.50

249.25

27

244.00

249.00

261.25

2

N/T

256.00

251.00

28

242.00

249.00

257.50

3

251.75

253.50

251.00

29

242.00

248.00

254.50

4

257.25

252.00

251.00

30

242.00

248.00

252.50

5

N/T

250.75

251.00

31

239.50

246.75

249.00

6

N/T

248.50

250.50

32

238.50

239.00

247.50

7

257.50

248.50

250.50

33

239.50

230.00

234.50

8

257.00

253.00

250.75

34

236.00

230.00

N/T

9

251.50

255.00

251.00

35

235.50

230.00

N/T

10

250.00

255.00

257.50

36

238.00

229.75

N/T

11

250.00

255.00

259.00

37

238.00

229.00

208.75

12

251.75

256.00

264.00

38

233.00

231.00

209.00

13

N/T

254.50

271.25

39

232.25

236.50

214.00

14

N/T

245.50

270.25

40

233.00

238.00

221.75

15

257.50

244.00

269.25

41

233.00

240.00

227.00

16

257.50

244.00

269.50

42

236.00

244.00

228.75

17

258.50

244.00

274.25

43

234.00

244.50

225.50

18

258.50

250.75

283.25

44

234.50

245.00

231.25

19

258.50

254.00

297.00

45

235.50

244.25

237.75

20

258.25

253.25

298.00

46

235.50

244.00

242.00

21

256.00

248.00

297.00

47

235.50

244.00

238.75

22

255.00

246.00

297.00

48

237.00

244.00

237.50

23

252.00

246.00

297.00

49

237.50

244.00

240.00

24

251.25

246.00

297.00

50

238.75

244.50

239.00

25

248.75

248.00

281.00

51

242.00

245.00

240.75

26

247.00

249.00

269.75

52

N/T

N/T

250.25
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Ontario/Alberta Fed Steer Price Spread
Dressed Basis
Ontario/Alberta Fed Steer Price Spread -Dressed Basis
$10.00
$5.00
per hundred pounds

$0.00
-$5.00
-$10.00
-$15.00
-$20.00
-$25.00
wk 43

wk 45

wk 47

wk 49

wk 51

wk 43

wk 45

wk 47

wk 49

wk 51

wk 41

wk 39

wk 37

wk 35

wk 33

wk 31

wk 29

wk 27

wk 25

wk 23

wk 21

wk 19

5 year Avg- 2014-2018

wk 17

wk 15

wk 13

wk 9

wk 11

wk 7

wk 5

wk 3

2019
wk 1

-$30.00

Data Source: Canfax/BFO

Ontario/U.S. Fed Steer Price Spread
Dressed Basis
Ontario/U.S. Fed Steer Price Spread -Dressed Basis

$30.00
$25.00

per hundred pounds

$20.00
$15.00
$10.00
$5.00
$0.00
-$5.00
-$10.00
-$15.00
-$20.00

Data Source: USDA/BFO
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wk 41

wk 39

wk 37

wk 35

wk 33

wk 31

wk 29

wk 25

5 year Avg- 2014-2018
wk 23

wk 21

wk 19

wk 17

wk 15

wk 13

wk 11

wk 9

wk 7

wk 5

wk 3

2019
wk 1

-$30.00

wk 27

-$25.00

Monthly Average Warm Carcass Weight
Steers
Monthly Average Warm Carcass Weight
Steers
Ontario

Canada

Month

2019

2018

2017

2019

2018

2017

January

972

972

974

936

909

918

February

969

971

963

919

908

911

March

967

968

960

915

909

912

April

964

960

952

907

886

884

May

962

938

936

877

846

843

June

937

914

899

868

844

850

July

913

909

903

881

867

864

August

923

920

915

911

894

893

September

941

935

938

925

922

919

October

951

950

952

932

932

925

November

965

960

967

930

925

926

December

972

971

963

920

929

912

Data Source: Canfax/CBGA

Monthly Average Warm Carcass Weight
Heifers
Monthly Average Warm Carcass Weight
Heifers
Ontario

Canada

Month

2019

2018

2017

2019

2018

2017

January

867

854

857

858

830

822

February

873

859

853

847

837

826

March

862

855

847

848

833

832

April

856

858

839

851

826

827

May

854

849

823

821

798

785

June

829

841

808

791

785

787

July

816

810

797

807

798

797

August

813

819

797

828

824

805

September

833

819

828

842

843

845

October

836

829

827

849

847

850

November

848

839

852

849

855

846

December

866

856

859

834

849

838

Data Source: Canfax/CBGA
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Canadian Boxed Beef Cut-Out Values
Weekly Average Price Per Pound
Canadian Boxed Beef Cut-Out Values
Weekly Average Price per Pound

Week
#

2019
AAA

2019
AA

2018
AAA

2018
AA

Week
#

2019
AAA

2019
AA

2018
AAA

2018
AA

1
2

2.5919

2.4155

2.5800

2.4906

2.7845

2.6046

2.8659

2.6299

2.7692

2.6613

2.5903

2.5152

27
28

2.7341

2.5018

2.7573

2.5902

3
4
5

2.7170
2.7778

2.6564
2.7001

2.5881
2.5360

2.5183
2.4992

2.6827
2.7085

2.4655
2.4442

2.7418
2.7232

2.6002
2.5944

2.8050
2.7804
2.7520

2.7252
2.7117
2.6923

2.5689
2.5236
2.5689

2.5092
2.4969
2.5594

29
30
31

2.7458
2.7585
2.8332

2.4770
2.4718
2.5369

2.6798
2.6994
2.6716

2.5517
2.5814
2.5678

2.7325
2.7358

2.6653
2.6684

2.5806
2.6580

2.5516
2.5943

2.8929
2.8927

2.6373
2.6283

2.6689
2.6703

2.5916
2.5745

2.7524

2.6666

2.6885

2.6349

2.9190

2.6053

2.6442

2.5319

13

2.8422
2.8399
2.8767

2.7911
2.7439
2.8133

2.7019
2.7565
2.7890

2.6694
2.6990
2.6791

39

2.8582
2.7407
2.7568

2.5219
2.4794
2.4792

2.6401
2.6137
2.6037

2.5369
2.4973
2.5392

14
15
16

2.8071
2.9008
2.9622

2.7599
2.8364
2.8254

2.7274
2.6726
2.6398

2.6619
2.5968
2.5711

40
41
42

2.7708
2.7491
2.7648

2.5394
2.4721
2.4488

2.6103
2.6089
2.5693

2.5866
2.4469
2.4701

17
18

2.9791
2.9797

2.8700
2.8269

2.6928
2.7145

2.6300
2.6146

43
44

2.7637
2.8128

2.5211
2.5593

2.6230
2.6637

2.4914
2.4965

19
20

3.0144
2.9860

2.8116
2.7800

2.7814
2.8197

2.6829
2.6467

45
46

2.8481
2.8836

2.6042
2.6989

2.6906
2.6775

2.5617
2.5621

21
22
23
24

2.8715

2.7229

2.8390

2.6571

2.9357

2.7341

2.7041

2.5723

2.9005
2.9074
2.8220

2.7695
2.7474
2.7033

2.8362
2.8948
2.7864

2.6243
2.6533
2.5424

47
48
49
50

2.9901

2.7304

2.7242

2.5672
2.6104
2.6526

2.8102

2.6950

2.8413

2.5963

51

2.7404
2.6918
2.6495

2.7372
2.7779

25

2.9501
2.9230
2.8197

2.7178

2.6586

26

2.7547

2.5757

2.8151

2.5946

52

N/A

N/A

2.6193

2.4374

6
7
8
9
10
11
12

Data Source: Canfax/AAFC
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32
33
34
35
36
37
38

Average price per pound

Canadian Boxed Beef Cut-Out Values
AAA
3.20

Canadian Boxed Beef Cut-Out Values - AAA
2017

3.10

2018

2019

3.00
2.90
2.80
2.70
2.60
2.50
2.30

wk 1
wk 3
wk 5
wk 7
wk 9
wk 11
wk 13
wk 15
wk 17
wk 19
wk 21
wk 23
wk 25
wk 27
wk 29
wk 31
wk 33
wk 35
wk 37
wk 39
wk 41
wk 43
wk 45
wk 47
wk 49
wk 51

2.40

Data Source: Canfax & AAFC

Canadian Boxed Beef Cut-Out Values
AA

Average price per pound

2.90

Canadian Boxed Beef Cut-Out Values - AA
2017

2.80

2018

2019

2.70
2.60
2.50

2.30

wk 1
wk 3
wk 5
wk 7
wk 9
wk 11
wk 13
wk 15
wk 17
wk 19
wk 21
wk 23
wk 25
wk 27
wk 29
wk 31
wk 33
wk 35
wk 37
wk 39
wk 41
wk 43
wk 45
wk 47
wk 49
wk 51

2.40

Data Source: Canfax & AAFC
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Beef Grade Distribution 2019
CANADA

Quality
Grade
A Prime
AAA
AA
A
B1
B2
B3
B4
Total

Youthful Cattle Beef Grade Distribution 2019
Federally Inspected Plants
Per cent
Yield Group
Y1
0.05
4.03
7.07
1.23

Y2
0.49
22.14
16.94
0.73

Y3
1.14
22.45
6.62
0.14

12.38

40.30

30.35

Y4
0.80
8.92
1.51
0.01

Total
Y5
0.52
3.02
0.33
0.00

11.23
3.88
No. head graded: 2,610,814

3.00
60.56
32.47
2.11
0.13
0.04
0.26
1.42
100.00

ONTARIO

Quality
Grade
A Prime
AAA
AA
A
B1
B2
B3
B4
Total

Youthful Cattle Beef Grade Distribution 2019
Federally Inspected Plants
Per cent
Yield Group
Total
Y1
0.01
1.50
4.35
0.98

Y2
0.27
18.62
15.65
0.36

Y3
0.91
22.32
6.04
0.04

6.86

34.90

29.31

Note: Based on gradings in federally inspected plants.

Y4
1.58
17.09
2.25
0.00

Y5
1.05
4.80
0.32
0.00

3.82
64.34
28.61
1.39
0.11
0.02
0.20
1.51
20.93
6.16
100.00
No. head graded: 528,350

Mature Cattle Distribution 2019
Federally Inspected Plants
Per cent
Ontario
D1
10.3
D2
53.3
D3
34.4
D4
1.9
E
0.1
Total head graded
66,083

Canada
3.9
60.7
29.4
2.8
3.3
437,039

Note: The Beef Grade regulations were restructured effective Jan 1, 2019 to adopt the USDA yield grade
algorithms.
Data Source: CBGA/Graeme Hedley
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Canadian Live
Cattle Live
Imports
and Exports
Canadian
Cattle
Imports and Exports

900,000

Imports into Canada

Exports from Canada

800,000
Number of head

700,000
600,000
500,000
400,000
300,000
200,000
100,000
0

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Data Source: Agriculture and Agri Food Canada
2019-Imports- Jan 1- Nov 30
2019-Exports Jan 1- Dec 28, 19

Canadian Beef
Imports
and Exports
Canadian
Beef
Imports and Export

Total Beef Imports

Beef Imports from US

Beef Imports Non-Nafta

Beef Exports

400,000
350,000

Tonnes

300,000
250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000
50,000
0

2015

2016

2017

Data Source: Agriculture & Agri Food Canada
2018-Imports- Jan 1- Dec 28, 2019
2019-Exports Jan 1- Nov 30, 2019

2018

2019
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INDUSTRY IN REVIEW
Beef Cattle Research Council
Canada Beef
Canadian Beef Check-off Agency
Canadian Cattlemen’s Association
Canadian Cattle Identification Agency
Farm & Food Care Ontario
Livestock Research Innovation Corporation
Ontario Cattle Feeders’ Association
Ontario Beef Cattle Financial Protection Fund
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BEEF CATTLE RESEARCH COUNCIL
The Beef Cattle Research Council (BCRC)

Beef Science Cluster III Funding by Research Priority Area

is Canada’s industry-led funding agency
for beef, cattle and forage research. Its
mandate is to determine research and
development priorities for the Canadian
beef cattle industry and to administer the
Canadian Beef Cattle Check-Off funds

11%

Animal Health, Welfare
& Antimicrobial Resistance

7%

24%

allocated to research. The BCRC is led
by a committee of beef producers who
proportionally represent each province’s
research allocation of the Canadian Beef
Cattle Check-Off.

28%

14

Beef Quality & Food Safety

%

16%

Following a transition year in terms of both

Food Production & Efficiency
Environment & Forages
Management & Science
Coordination
Technology Transfer

funding and program administration, the
Beef Cattle Research Council (BCRC) has
expanded and continues to advance its
programming.

through investments in Genetic

Beef Science Cluster III in Progress

Selection, Research, Research Capacity

Funding for the current (third) Cluster

The BCRC is a key partner in renewing

and Technology Adoption, enhance

was announced by AAFC in July 2018.

and achieving the goals of the National

competitiveness through investments in

Covering the period to March 31, 2023, $21

Beef Strategy. Research and/or technology

Surveillance and support an Outcome/

million has been directed to 26 research

transfer outcomes in all four pillars of

Science-based regulatory system through

projects. The funding includes $14 million

the 2020-2024 Strategy, those being

targeted research funding.

from AAFC, $5 million in funding from the

National Beef Strategy

productivity, competitiveness, beef
demand, and connectivity, are addressed
by the BCRC.

Canada’s Beef Cattle Industry Science
Clusters

research allocation of the Canadian Beef
Cattle Check-Off and $1.5 million in in-kind
contributions from industry in the form of

The Science Clusters are a partnership

cattle, equipment, and materials.

with Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada

This Cluster will work to grow beef exports

Advantage, to increase, maintain and

(AAFC) that combines their strengths with

and supply growing global beef demand

enhance Consumer Confidence, and

the BCRC’s to make joint-investments in

by supporting research and technology

support Public Trust and Sustainability.

a variety of research programs with the

transfer that advances Canadian beef and

The BCRC works to increase productivity

greatest potential to advance the industry.

forage production while enhancing industry

BCRC programs are established to
Validate and enhance the Canadian Beef
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competitiveness and the public’s trust in

long-term research capacity in areas of

responsible production.

priority to industry.

Details on all 26 Cluster projects are
available on BeefResearch.ca.

Priority Research Projects
In addition to the projects within the third
Science Cluster, research aimed at achieving
specific goals of high priority to the beef
industry are sought. Since June 2018, the
council has launched an annual targeted call
for letters of intent. Applicants are required
to source 50% or greater of project funding
in order to leverage check-off dollars for
a greater return on producer investment.
Summaries of these research projects will be
available on BeefResearch.ca.

Proof of Concept Projects
Also being funded are short-term (six
months to one year) proof of concept-based
(POC) research to help inform whether
a concept is worth pursuing as a larger,
more defined research investment. BCRC
approved funding in February 2019 for four
POC projects. These POC projects were

From the proposals submitted in 2018/19,
two concepts were selected for further
development:

The BCRC continues to develop and
distribute several extension resources
for Canadian cattle producers, including
interactive decision-making tools, videos,
articles, webinars, and infographics. All

• A Beef Production Systems Chair is

are available on www.beefresearch.ca,

proposed to be established at the

and regularly promoted through various

University of Alberta “to increase the

channels, including the BCRC Blog and the

competitiveness of those sectors of the

BCRC e-newsletter, The Wire.

Canadian beef industry that rely heavily

Advancement of the Verified Beef
Production Plus program

on grazing-based forage resources,
while maintaining a strong focus on beef
production and market outcomes”.
• At the Western College of Veterinary

In addition to funding research, the BCRC is
responsible for the delivery of the Verified
Beef Production Plus (VBP+) program,

Medicine, University of Saskatchewan,

which verifies on-farm practices related to

a BCRC Chair in One Health and

food safety, animal care, biosecurity, and

Production-Limiting Diseases is proposed

environment. Ongoing national industry

to be established with the goal “to

investment will ensure the consistent

increase capacity for applied field

delivery of the VBP+ program as it becomes

research and surveillance in specific

a core pillar in verifying sustainable beef

priority areas outlined by the beef

production in partnership with end-users.

industry including: animal health and
welfare, antimicrobial use, resistance and
alternatives, and on-farm food safety”.

funded in large part by a private industry
partner. A second call for POC projects was

BCRC has conditionally committed

launched August 2019.

$150,000/year for five years to each

Research Capacity

Knowledge and Technology Transfer

For More Information
To learn more about BCRC initiatives and
take advantage of our extension resources,
visit our website at www.beefresearch.ca.

of the Chair positions outlined above,
with commitment conditional upon the

The BCRC identified that gaps in research

Institution securing matching funds. Efforts

capacity are a high priority and in 2018/19

are currently being led by the institutions,

began the process of developing Research

supported by the BCRC, to secure matching

Chairs in partnership with key Research

funds through sources such as the NSERC

Institutions through a competitive call for

Industrial Research Chair (IRC) program with

proposals. The intent of BCRC investments

the goal of matching funds and the new

is to leverage other funding to implement

Chair positions being in place in 2019/20.
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CANADA BEEF
As the marketing division of the Canadian

concepts to be as effective as possible with

successfully build relationships and drive

Beef Cattle Research, Market Development

our consumer marketing investments.

demand. At Canadabeef.ca, consumers and

and Promotion Agency, Canada Beef

Domestic Market Development

producers can source information regarding

is the cattle producer-funded and run
organization responsible for domestic
and international beef and veal market
development. It has 28 staff in offices in
Canada, Mexico, Japan, China and Taiwan.

Preliminary 2019 consumption data shows
a slight decrease in per capita beef
consumption due to larger net exports of
Canadian beef. Eighty-one per cent of beef

In addition to National Check-Off and import consumed in Canada was sourced from
levy funding, Canada Beef leverages cattle domestic production, up three per cent
producer dollars with private market partner
investments and government industry
development funding to maximize the
benefits of producer check-off investment.

Capture High Growth Market Segments

from 2018. The retail beef demand index
was down 3.3 per cent, while the wholesale
demand index was up 1.3 per cent. (Note:
final 2019 consumption data will be
available in spring 2020.)

recipes, beef know-how, media releases,
beef campaigns and events in both English
and French. The Make it Beef (MIB) monthly
e-newsletter is deployed to almost 40,000
subscribers covering topics that are both
culinary and brand-focused. The Roundup
App is a mobile beef buying and cooking
app designed to help consumers have
better success with beef when they cook at
home. This resource is offered in English,
French and Spanish and was adapted for
the Chinese market.
Closely related to consumer marketing

tools to identify high-growth, high-value

Expand Programs with Retail and
Foodservice Partners

consumer groupings by demographics,

By focusing on brand partners with large

social license with the public. Canada Beef

behaviour, ethnicity, geography, etc.

volumes and influence (such as Sobeys,

continues to partner with CCA and other

By understanding consumer segments’

Costco, Loblaw, Walmart, Federated Co-

beef industry groups to address public

needs and wants, Canada Beef develops

op, Tim Hortons, Swiss Chalet, Montana’s,

concerns about beef production, while

marketing and promotional campaigns

Subway, Sysco), Canada Beef can ensure

also building/reinforcing the Canadian beef

relevant to each segment resulting in

these partners are well-versed in Canadian

brand.

increased awareness, improved perception,

beef, and can leverage the value of the

heightened product desire and ultimately,

Canadian Beef Brand. Moreover, these

increased purchase.

programs build loyalty and commitment

Canada Beef is using market segmentation

Canada Beef completed extensive

to Canadian beef among trade partners
and consumers, thus generating sustained

are efforts to build the beef industry’s

In response to the launch of Canada’s
Food Guide in January 2019, a social media
campaign around sustainability and beef
was developed. The posts highlighted key

demand and increased value for producers.

facts around nutritional benefits of beef

consumer and customer attitudes towards

Consumer Marketing and Public Trust

The team prepared responses in advance

our beef products and production systems

Canada Beef’s social and digital spaces

to provide correct information and answers

to better understand our relative strengths

engage and connect with consumers and

to consumer questions. The joint issues

and weaknesses specific to those markets.

producers to build brand loyalty. With

management team coordinated a response

This information is being used to develop

over 61,000 followers and 7.2 million

strategy for the launch of the food guide

promotional and marketing creative

impressions, Canada Beef continues to

that included responding to over 50

consumer research in Canada, Mexico,
Japan, China and Taiwan looking at
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and sustainability facts and information.

interview requests; resource kits produced

the Food Network, HGTV, Showcase

per cent in volume and 21 per cent in value.

and shared with national and provincial

and the National Geographic Channel.

These are record high values and near

organizations (#Beefbelongs shared

The campaign was projected to reach

record high volumes. Overall Canadian beef

previously with the Board); collaboration

15,000,000+ adults aged 25-54.

export demand was up seven per cent from

with other animal protein groups; and media
training for key spokespeople.

Generic Beef Marketing Funded by the
Import Levy

Protect and Grow Canadian Beef in Export
Markets
Canada Beef’s work in export markets is

2018. Japan in particular has been surging
due to the tariff rate reduction Canada is
enjoying with the implementation of the
CPTPP trade agreement. Canada received

creating opportunities for the Canadian

The Import Levy (collected on beef imports

a tariff reduction of 11 per cent on January

beef industry to realize greater value for

at the equivalent rate of $1 per head)

1st, while our largest competitor, the United

the carcass than could be realized in the

continues to provide funding for positive

States, has remained at the previous tariff

domestic market alone. As well as offering

beef messaging across Canada. With

level. This has contributed to a doubling of

competitive bids on middle meats, the

typical Canadian beef export volumes to

consumers’ diminishing food skills, concerns

export markets can deliver better returns

Japan through most of 2019.

over healthy diets and public trust issues,

for end meats, credit/thin meats and offal

Canada Beef developed targeted initiatives

than here at home. Canfax Research

to positively influence consumer preference

Services estimates well over $600/head in

for beef over other proteins. Activities

additional value is added to the carcass by

included print advertising, social media

export markets.

(i.e. blogs), television and radio interviews,
and generated over 24 million consumer

With heightened competition from other

impressions. Visit www.thinkbeef.ca for

beef exporters, there is a need to intensify

access to marketing resources generated

our business development programs in

from import levy funding.

export markets where we are currently

Canada Beef conducted a Canada-wide
television campaign for winter 2019. In light
of the new Food Guide discussions around
the value of plant-based protein foods, the
campaign was designed to draw consumer
attention to beef’s substantial nutrient
profile, in conjunction with its amazing
taste and versatility as part of a balanced
diet. The three 15-second spots stressed
the remarkable nutrient density of beef
compared to other protein foods, including
plant-based burgers. The $220,000
campaign ran on a variety of prominent

present. These include: Japan, China,
Southeast Asia, Korea, Taiwan, Mexico,
European Union and the Middle East. By
utilizing integrated marketing programs
linking online and live events; culinary
seminars and competitions; social media
platforms and brand media campaigns; and
business development outreach through
trade shows and trade missions, Canada

Double the Business Generated by the
Canadian Beef Centre of Excellence
The Canadian Beef Centre of Excellence
(CBCE) is a teaching/training demo theatre
featuring a fabrication room, commercial
and home kitchen, boardroom and dining
room, world-class equipment and HACCP
standards. The Centre provides a place
where staff can offer solutions to beef
category challenges for existing customers,
and introduce new customers and markets
to Canadian beef for the first time. To date,
the CBCE has had visitors from more than
32 countries, hosted over 90 international
missions and over 140 domestic missions
representing over 450 companies from
across the globe.

Beef is creating brand awareness and
positively positioning Canadian beef in the
minds of export customers, consumers and
key influencers.

television networks such as CTV, CBC,

Overall Canadian beef exports from

CTV News Channel, CBC News Network,

January to September 2019 were up 12.3
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CANADIAN BEEF CHECK-OFF AGENCY
It is my privilege to have been elected

I am encouraged by the strengthened

funds, net administration, are allocated to

Chair of the Canadian Beef Check-Off

relationships between our Agency and our

unbranded, generic beef marketing such

Agency (the Agency) in August 2019,

provincial cattle association stakeholders.

as nutrition marketing, recipe development

following our AGM. I am honoured to lead

We have come a long way over the past

and culinary skills education.

such a dedicated group of producers and

few years, and it is our key priority to

industry stakeholders, and work towards

ensure the best use of the check-off dollars

a unified and sustainable national funding

the provincial associations allocate. The

strategy for Canadian beef cattle research,

Agency continues to work together with

market development and promotion.

the provincial associations in many aspects,

The Agency manages and administers the
Canadian Beef Cattle Check-Off, which is
collected on each head of cattle sold in

and I am confident a renewed commitment
to strong partnerships will help us to deliver
measurable value for producers in Canada.

$629,683 was retained for the
administration of the check-off, the Agency
and the Board. Our Board of Directors
expenses have been reduced by 10 per
cent in the last year, and over 40 per
cent since 2016. Canada Beef covered
the additional costs for the Marketing
Committee.

Canada. The Canadian Beef Cattle Check-

In 2018/19, the Canadian Beef Cattle

Off, the $2.50 portion administered by the

Check-Off revenue totaled $18,300,229 on

Agency, is invested into national research,

cattle marketed. Revenue was generated at

market development and promotion

$2.50 per head on cattle marketed across

activities on behalf of all Canadian beef

Canada, with the exception of B.C. who

producers, while the provincial check-

increased in July 2018, and Ontario, who

Committee to oversee Canada Beef’s

collects $1 per head.

strategic and business operations, and

off is earmarked for provincially-focused
advocacy, policy, trade, research, market
development and promotion initiatives.
By working with service providers,
the Agency ensures the check-off
dollars invested into research, market
development and promotion programs
deliver measurable value to the Canadian
beef industry. We are responsible for
governance and communicating the value
of the check-off investment, as well as

Of the total net check-off funds collected
off cattle marketings, 52 per cent was
allocated to market development and
promotion, 32 per cent to research, 12

fiscal year, just before our last AGM.
The new bylaws set the stage for
more independence for the Marketing

include the election of four additional
non-Agency committee members. The
Agency continues to oversee the Marketing
Committee from a governance perspective.
The regulatory compliance of both check-

cattle organizations for regional marketing

off and import levy administration included

and research programs, and four per cent

the updating of all agreements with the

was allocated to Public and Stakeholder

nine provincial cattle associations. By

Engagement (previously called issues

modernizing the language and refreshing

management).

the details, the Agency strengthened

The Import Levy on beef cattle, beef and

funding partners, regulatory management,

beef products imported into Canada was

collection and administration of check-off

also collected at a rate of $1 per head

dollars.

equivalent, for a total of $1,094,435. These
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updated set of bylaws early in the

per cent was retained by the provincial

training and education of producers and
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The Agency members approved an

relationships and laid the foundation for
most provinces to administer an increased
check-off.
As of March 31, 2019, eight provinces

have increased the checkoff to $2.50

compliance. Ensuring all of our producers

per head. The most recent increases in

and beef importers are on equal footing

Alberta, Saskatchewan and Manitoba were

strengthens our industry’s competitiveness,

supported by the Agency for a smooth

and supports the programs that drive value

transition. The Agency concentrated on

for stakeholders through the investment of

education of proper remittances, mostly

those dollars.

on interprovincial trade. The approach will
continue going forward with the goal of
reducing slippage and incorrectly levied
sales.

the measurable value for our industry.
I am excited about the year ahead, and
encourage everyone to connect with us
any way you can, including through your
provincial representative. You can find
us online at cdnbeefcheckoff.ca, or on

Our Agency is strong because of

your favourite social media platform @

those who come together to guide

cdnbeefcheckoff.

our organization, and because of the
stakeholders who we represent. I am proud

Regards,

We continue to support increased

to be a voice for Canadian beef producers

Chad Ross

communication and education activities

from coast to coast, and to work with our

CHAIR, CANADIAN BEEF

around check-off and import levy

experienced Agency members to deliver

CHECK-OFF AGENCY
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CANADIAN CATTLEMEN’S ASSOCIATION
2019 was an active year for the Canadian

Free Trade Agreement, the Canada-

shortage of slaughter capacity in the East.

Cattlemen’s Association (CCA). On the

U.S.-Mexico Agreement (CUSMA). This

Lack of processing capabilities increases

foreign trade front, the CCA was pleased

long-awaited trade agreement will ensure

other costs, for example, if cattle are being

with the resumption of trade with China

Canada has access to essential North

kept on feed longer than anticipated and

in late November. Following discovery of

American markets, particularly the U.S.

often results in over-weight discounts.

fraudulent pork export certificates on June
25th, 2019, Canadian exports of meat were
halted. Since June, CCA has been actively
engaged in discussions with government
officials to help ensure Canadian beef
exports to China would be eligible as
soon as possible. The Government of
Canada completed an investigation and
submitted an Action Plan that supported
the re-establishment of exports to China;
all establishments eligible to export as
of June 25, 2019 are once again eligible.
CCA wants to thank all those involved in
restoring this important trade relationship.
Shipments of Canadian beef to China
represented 2.6 per cent of Canada’s
total beef exports in 2018. In the 1st half
of 2019 exports to China were up 271% in
value at 11,315 tonnes valued at $96 million
and were on pace to reach 6.1% of total
exports. The CCA was recently in China for
meetings to further build the Canada-China
trade relationship.
In December, Deputy Prime Minister
Chrystia Freeland attended the formal
signing of successor to the North American
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The main objectives for CCA in the new
NAFTA negotiations included maintaining
access and ensuring mandatory Country
of Origin Labelling remained out of the
agreement. Further regulatory cooperation
areas were also sought, however, not fully
attained in the agreement and remain
areas for further improvement.
Back in Canada, CCA representatives
met with Beef Farmers of Ontario and
the Ontario Cattle Feeders Association in
November to discuss challenges in Eastern
Canada. Chief among these is the shortage
in packing capacity, which has resulted in
significant economic impact on both the
dairy and beef industries. The extent of
the situation is estimated at $174 million
economic impact (if cattle prices were
normalized to the five-year fall average
price for fed cattle and cows in Ontario
and Quebec from the 2018 eastern fall

Furthermore, the processing shortages
have ramifications extending beyond
Ontario and Quebec, and into Manitoba
and the Maritimes. The economic impact of
these ongoing shortages is significant and
warrants careful consideration and timely
action.
We at CCA foresee a number of solutions
that would help alleviate these challenges,
including the funding of an export
diversification fund, a joint government and
industry initiative assessing the need for a
short-term assistance program, increasing
access to labour through the temporary
foreign workers program and recently
announced pilot program, and undertaking
a study to assess the regulatory
competitiveness of Canada’s packing
industry. As we head back to Ottawa this
fall, this will be top priority for CCA working
with the new government.

price lows). The problem is being further

Further East, the Maritime Beef Strategy

exacerbated by the closure of an Ontario

covering New Brunswick, Nova Scotia and

processing facility.

Prince Edward Island has a goal to expand

This cost estimate does not fully capture
the extent of the hardship caused by the

cattle inventories and beef production.
There is ample pasture for the cow-calf

sector to expand and feed available with

dairy steers for finishing in the region, with

with regards to the regulations. While

the region being a net exporter of barley.

additional supplies estimated at 70,000

the Minister indicated regulations will

There is also growing demand for locally

head (depending on beef heifer retention

still come into force on February 20th,

grown beef through the Atlantic Beef

percentages).

2020, the transition period would provide

Products Inc. plant. These signs all bode
well for expansion of the Maritime beef
herd, however, a lack of risk management
tools available in the region increases
the price risk and limits the options for
young producers in accessing financial
support. CCA met with Maritime beef
representatives in the fall to assess some
of these challenges.

Unfortunately, there is currently not
enough price data in the Maritime region
alone to support a Maritime Settlement
Index like those in other provinces.
However, there is a high correlation
between cattle prices in Ontario and
Quebec, as the local prices arbitrage to
those larger markets. Maritime producers
are willing to accept an out of province

flexibility to the industry and focus on soft
enforcement measures such as education
and awareness. CCA has heard similar
messaging from CFIA and although on
initial interpretation we are hopeful there
is a willingness on behalf of CFIA to
pause and take into account infrastructure
needs and ongoing government funded
livestock transportation research to
ensure we get the regulations right, the

The Maritime beef and dairy combined

settlement index, through the creation of

cow herd of 100,800 head (as of January

an Eastern Settlement Index, consisting

1, 2019) typically ships over 50% of calves

of data from Ontario, Quebec, and the

to Ontario or Quebec. Some feeders are

Maritimes. CCA will continue to work

backgrounded locally before being sold

with its Eastern members to advance this

Looking forward to 2020, the CCA will

to Ontario or Quebec for finishing. The

initiative in the new year.

continue its dedicated work on behalf of

pinch point is at the finishing stage as
packer demand is currently 650 - 1,000
head per week, with the shortfall being
purchased in from Quebec. Atlantic Beef
Products has plans to expand cooler
and shipping space as well as moving to
full-day harvest and fabrication. There are
currently 26,800 head of cattle on feed in
finishing feedlots in the Maritime region
that could be interested in price insurance
as a risk management tool. With enhanced
risk management solutions there is
potential to retain more beef calves and

Changes to livestock transportation
regulations brought in by the previous
government have raised concerns for
Canadian beef producers. The proposed
changes would see feed, water and rest
intervals for cattle drop from 48 hours

CCA is still awaiting the specific details
of the proposed transition period for the
Canadian beef and dairy sectors.

Canada’s 60,000 beef farms and ranches
in order to realize the vision of a profitable
Canadian beef industry with high-quality
beef products recognized as the most
outstanding by customers at home and
around the world.

to 36 hours and rest stop durations

David Haywood-Farmer

increase from 5 hours to 8 hours. In

CCA PRESIDENT

December 2019, Minister of Agriculture
and Agri-Food Marie Claude Bibeau
announced that there would be a 2 year
“transition period” for the cattle sector
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CANADIAN CATTLE
IDENTIFICATION AGENCY
Webstore

The Canadian Cattle Identification Agency

Premises identification (PID) remains the

(CCIA) is pleased to report on another

building block for most of the proposed

productive year.

regulations. CCIA has received tremendous

2019. The exclusive distribution of Angus

collaboration from many provincial

tags and the addition of a Shorthorn tag

governments whose PID numbers have

helped drive traffic to the site. The webstore

been matched with CLTS accounts. CCIA

is now offering pre-regulatory goat and

continues to pursue collaboration with the

cervid indicators and tag readers. Increasing

remaining provinces.

the range of products in the store, a user-

The Board of Directors underwent several
personnel changes in 2019. Pat Hayes
(Canadian Cattlemen’s Association)
replaced Mark Elford (Saskatchewan
Stock Growers Association) as Chair. Lyle

The CCIA Webstore gained momentum in

friendly design and competitive prices have

Miller (Alberta Cattle Feeders’ Association)

The Canadian Dairy Network (CDN) will

was elected as Vice-Chair. The Executive

be moving forward as the responsible

Committee now includes Ken Perlich

administrator for the dairy sector. This new

(Livestock Markets Association of Canada)

traceability database will be known as

as well as previous members, Howard

DairyTrace. CDN and CCIA intend to work

Technology

Bekkering (Alberta Beef Producers) and

closely to establish a smooth transition of

Ultra-High Frequency (UHF) technology

Doug Sawyer (Canadian Cattlemen’s

data, which will involve the historical data

has become a frequently discussed topic

Association).

transfer as well as on-going data capture.

over the last few years. A UHF project is

The Board welcomes new representation
from:

Communications

•S
 askatchewan Stock Growers Association
- Shane Jahnke
• Beef Farmers of Ontario - Dan Darling
• Manitoba

Beef Producers - Nancy Howatt

Regulations
Proposed amendments have been
postponed until 2020.

added more reasons for producers to take
their shopping online and purchase digitally
from our webstore.

being contemplated to allow CCIA to have
updated information on the technology

CCIA’s Communications team developed

as it relates to animal identification and

and executed an intensive rebranding

traceability.

of the organization in 2019. This was
launched with the introduction of the
new logo in the final quarter of 2018. The
redesign incorporated practical fact sheets
developed as visual aids on numerous
topics over the year. The fact sheets were
developed to further educate and create
awareness through simple and digestible

CCIA continues to place a high priority on
improving tag retention. One ongoing study
is focused on the plastic composition and
its role in durability. We were pleased to
help undertake a solution that will improve
retention caused by plastic deterioration
from manufacturers.

learning literature. They are posted to the

Field Team

Earlier this year, CCIA and the Canadian

CCIA website and have been featured on

CCIA’s National Field Services team was

Cattlemen’s Association (CCA) discussed

social media via the daily posts.

present all over the country; both by

with the federal government the financial
impact of the proposed regulations.
Industry urged government to make
traceability a budget item instead of
stakeholders having to apply for funding.

CCIA was engaged at a variety of speaking
engagements across the country. Delivered
by CCIA staff, presentations were focused
on how to prepare for proposed regulatory
amendments and how to use the CLTS and
the CLTS MOBO APP.
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attending industry events and by conducting
dealer verifications. The Field team put a
heavy emphasis on educating dealers and
producers on how to use the CLTS system
and the value of the CLTS MOBO APP.

Client Support
Our Client Support services was the
focus of last year’s annual mandatory
internal audit. The recommendations
led to stronger delivery of services and

protect sensitive data. Removing all

The CLTS MOBO APP offers the power of

physical servers and changing to virtual

the CLTS at your fingertips. It is available

systems decreased the need for hardware

as a free download, wherever you get

and freed up maintenance costs. Major

your APPs.

overhauls took place to upgrade servers
increased performance, availability and

Canadian Livestock Tracking System
(CLTS) Enhancements

closer relationships with other regulated

redundancy.

CCIA continues to improve the

parties, including fairs and exhibitions,

CLTS MOBO

better preparations for future needs for
representatives. We have developed

who are setting up CLTS accounts for the

and redesign network structures for

functionality of the CLTS by making
enhancements to various features such as

CLTS MOBO APP received a complete

support of customized herd management

revamp of the user interface, offering

numbers, revamped event type permission

A new Gift Certificate process was

new features and a new design. Features

logic and support to cross reference two

implemented. Gift certificates of any dollar

include addition of practical events, an

USDA tags.

amount are available for purchase and can

enhanced submission process and tag

be redeemed through a rebate process for

input via Bluetooth enabled tag reader.

first time.

any product in the CCIA webstore.

Information Technology (IT)
The IT department made major changes
in 2019 to update digital security and

An Offline Mode was added to the APP,
which allows users to store data and
upload at a more convenient time, or
when back in a service area.
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FARM & FOOD CARE ONTARIO

Before the Plate Screening

Farm & Food Care Ontario (FFCO) is

special interest groups. Participants learn

grateful for the continued support of

how to effectively engage with the public

Platinum Members like Beef Farmers of

about food and farming, prepare for

Ontario (BFO), which enables us to pursue

including food influencers, bloggers,

complicated conversations at community

the important work of building public trust

writers, chefs and Registered Dietitians

events or on their own farms, and speak

to Isabel Bader Theatre in Toronto for a

with the media about issues affecting their

screening of Before the Plate. The film

industry.

follows the ingredients used at one of

in Ontario agriculture. Throughout 2019,
FFCO’s efforts in outreach, training and
consultation have benefitted Ontario’s

In April, FFCO welcomed over 150 guests

Toronto’s most prestigious restaurants all

beef farmers directly.

COMMUNICATIONS & OUTREACH

Charitable Status

Union Station

After a yearlong application process, Farm

For a second year, FFCO brought dozens

& Food Care Ontario (FFCO) became

guests were joined by dozens of Ontario

of farmers to Toronto’s Union Station

a registered Canadian charity in 2019.

farmers, as well as several of the farmers

in celebration of Ontario Agriculture

who starred in the film, including beef

Week in October. Throughout the pop-

farmer Cory Van Groningen. The event

up activation, volunteers and farmers,

was made possible by a partnership

including several beef farmers and BFO

between FFCO and seven commodity

staff, greeted commuters, answered

groups, including Canada Beef, under the

their questions and thanked them for

ON Common Ground banner.

Training and Workshops

supporting Ontario’s farmers. Early

In 2019, FFCO offered over 60 speaker

morning commuters were offered

Feeding a Sustainable Toronto

services, training and workshops to

breakfast sandwiches prepared with

member groups, farmers, students,

Ontario ingredients. Later in the day,

commodity organizations, agribusinesses

all-Ontario snacks, including beef

and agricultural organizations throughout

pepperettes, were given to afternoon

the province. Several of these

commuters for their trip home.

Charitable status will enable FFCO to
recognize philanthropic support with
charitable tax receipts and qualify as
a potential applicant to more funding
agencies.

the way back to the farm and processing
operations where they are grown and
produced. A reception followed, where

In November, beef farmers joined
over one hundred Toronto area food
influencers for an event entitled “Feeding
a Sustainable Toronto” at the Royal
Ontario Museum.
FFCO kicked off the event with a

presentations and workshops were
tailored specifically for beef farmer groups

This event’s success was the result

screening of the newly-released short

throughout the province, including two

of support and volunteers from eight

documentary, Guardians of the Grasslands

conducted in partnership with BFO on

different provincial commodity groups and

and two Ontario videos showcasing

how to protect farms against threats by

associations, including BFO.

recent winners of The Environmental
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FACES BEHIND FOOD POST
Featuring Beef Farmer Kim Jo Bliss
“I spent much of my childhood on my grandmother’s beef
cattle farm – she lived around the corner and my parents
always knew where to find me if I wasn’t at home! Fast
forward 40 years and I’m now raising beef cows and
sheep on my great uncle’s farm. I never really wanted to
do anything else.
What did grandma think about my career choice? Even
when she was no longer active on the farm, she was quick
to offer advice. She’d leave me messages telling when
she thought I need to move cows to another pasture!”

Stewardship Award. Guardians of the Grasslands, produced
by Ducks Unlimited Canada and the Nature Conservancy of
Canada, explores the relationship between the survival of one
of the world’s most endangered ecosystems, the Great Plains
grasslands, and grazing livestock like cattle. The screening was
followed by a panel discussion between five experts including
beef farmer Cory Van Groningen. Farmer Paul Brown of
Kawartha Lakes was one of the two MCs for the evening.
During the reception that followed, guests had the chance
to meet and ask questions of the many farmers who were in
attendance. The evening was organized in partnership with Beef Farmers of Ontario, Canadian
Cattlemen’s Association, Canada Beef and Ontario Sheep Farmers.

Faces Behind Food
2019 saw the launch of Faces Behind Food, a social media campaign that shares the photos and stories of the farmers, researchers
and other professionals behind the food we love. With the vast majority of the population well removed from farming and food
production, Faces Behind Food shows Ontario consumers the passion that goes into the local foods they’re buying, one person at a
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FARM & FOOD CARE ONTARIO

CONTINUED

Agricultural Partnership funding through
the Agricultural Adaptation Council
to extend work focused on farm fire
awareness and prevention. FFCO
exhibited at eight industry events,
delivered seven keynote presentations on
the topic and produced seventeen articles
for the farm press.
Additionally, an Ontario-specific course
was developed for first responders to
better prepare them for responding to
unique challenges of livestock truck
rollovers. Over one hundred firefighters
and first responders were trained
throughout five one-day courses held
across the province.
(Left to Right) Director of Before the Plate Sagi Kahane-Rapport, with Registered
Dietitian Filomena Vernace-Inserra, food influencer Fina Scroppo and beef farmer Cory
Van Groningen who appears in the film.

FFCO continues to offer a FLIR (heat
sensing) equipment lending program,
where farmers can use the module to
check for potential fire risks like heat
corrosion in receptacles, plugs and panels
in livestock barns. FLIR modules can be

time. These profiles, including numerous

on-farm environmental issues and help

beef farmers, can be found on Instagram,

shape issue-specific work FFCO is doing

borrowed from the FFCO office.

Facebook and

in those areas. Abdication of the OSPCA,

www.FarmFoodCareON.org.

trade issues, and growing concerns about

Farm Animal Care Helpline

Farm Environmental and Farm Animal
Care Council
In 2019, three Farm Animal Care and
Farm Environment Advisory Council

farm trespassing were among the topics
discussed. Since 2017, the Farm Animal
Care council has been chaired by BFO’s
Dave Cavanagh.

meetings were held for FFCO’s Platinum,

ANIMAL CARE INITIATIVES

Gold and Silver level voting members.

Livestock Emergency and Farm Fire
Awareness

These meetings provide an open forum
for input, ideas, dialogue and proactive
thinking on farm animal welfare and
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In 2019, FFCO received Canadian

FFCO received 11 calls to the Farm Animal
Care Helpline in 2019. This confidential
service allows concerned farmers and
community members to report situations
where they feel another farmer could
use help, resources or advice in better
caring for their animals. The intention is
for a “farmer helping farmer” approach to
intervening in sensitive situations before
they reach a critical point or need the

Ontario Agriculture Week Union Station event volunteers including Beef Farmers of Ontario staff.

attention of the provincial authority. FFCO

towards manure application and to

farmfoodcareON.org. Comments and

works with farmers, experienced staff and

identify a communications strategy going

questions can always be directed to

commodity groups like BFO to investigate

forward. The Peer to Peer Network is a

Farm & Food Care staff directly at info@

reports and resolve these situations

subgroup focused on raising awareness

farmfoodcare.org

accordingly.

about the potential for run-off when

ENVIRONMENT INITIATIVES

Timing Matters and Peer to Peer
The Timing Matters Working Group is a
FFCO-led coalition of farm organizations
including BFO, which strives to promote
sound manure management practices. In
2019, a focus group of farmers, custom
manure applicators, nutrient consultants
and equipment manufacturers was
conducted to better understand attitudes

nutrient application is made to frozen
fields. Peer to Peer continues to consult
farmers on best practices, dispel myths
and identify practical alternatives to
spreading manure on frozen or snowcovered.

TO LEARN MORE

Anyone interested in keeping current on
Farm & Food Care Ontario initiatives is
encouraged to subscribe to the monthly
e-newsletter and/or register for FFCO’s
Annual Meeting and Speakers’ Program
scheduled for April 15. Details are
available at www.FarmFoodCareON.org

To learn more about more of Farm &
Food Care’s outreach, animal care
and environment initiatives, visit www.

BFO ANNUAL REPORT 2020		

I 61

LIVESTOCK RESEARCH
INNOVATION CORPORATION

This has been a year of transition for

to have LRIC facilitate the development

both the Livestock Research Innovation

of their research priorities. A day with the

Corporation (LRIC) and Beef Farmers of

BFO Research Committee led to the clear

Ontario (BFO), with each organization

priorities used in the call for proposals.

choosing new leadership. Fortunately,

BFO is making good use of our research

Richard and I have worked well

management system to receive and review

together in the past and are off to a

proposals. We also ensured consideration

great start together in our new roles.

of proposals benefitted from comments

LRIC appreciates BFO’s strong support,

from the Beef Cattle Research Council.

including having Richard on our Board of
Directors.

Forage remains a critical input for the beef
sector and BFO was well represented

I had the privilege of attending the

at the research priority session hosted

opening of the new Beef Research

by LRIC on behalf of the Ontario Forage

Centre… a huge congratulations to BFO

Council. These priorities will help guide new

for having the foresight and commitment

forage-focused research at the University of

so many years ago that led to this

Guelph, who have just hired a new Forage

achievement! The Ontario beef industry

researcher. The priorities also help to

now has tremendous potential to benefit

identify areas where different sectors (beef,

from world-leading research. Tied closely

dairy, sheep) can coordinate research for

to this are the efforts of BFO, working

the benefit of everyone.

with the University of Guelph, to ensure a
strong team of beef researchers is in place
to make good use of that facility. In each
case, facilities and faculty, LRIC was happy
to play a supporting role.
BFO has been a strong supporter of LRIC
since its beginning, and this year chose
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During my first few months, I made a point
to speak with all major funding members
and I heard that, while they appreciate what
LRIC has done, they want more regular
communication. As a result, every funding
member now receives a quarterly report.

In addition, we revised our communication
plan, which now includes:
• Monthly newsletter “Livestock
Innovation”
• Research Scout emails (focus on
current scientific articles)
• Twitter (more active to reach a growing
audience: @LivestockInnov)
• Articles for industry magazines

Specifically for the beef sector, our articles written for Ontario Beef included:

1

Identifying genetic markers that influence
beef cattle reproduction and fertility

4

Does how a cow is fed during pregnancy
impact the life-long performance of her calf?

2

 ehind the Barn Doors: What Guelph’s new
B
beef research facilities will offer

5

3

 tudy finds resistance to de-wormers in
S
Ontario beef cattle

 enetics and gut bacteria the biggest
G
influence on feed efficiency, new research
shows

6

 esearch validates value of two stage
R
weaning

MENTORSHIP OPPORTUNITY
One particularly exciting development is a new
mentorship opportunity LRIC now offers early stage
faculty at the Ontario Agricultural and Veterinary
Colleges. The idea for this came from the experience
I had as part of the successful Beef Cattle Research
Council’s Young Scientist Program. By adding the LRIC
mentorship opportunity, we will be able to build better
bridges between more researchers and industry faster.
This can’t help but lead to better research and innovation.

As a member-focused service organization, LRIC strives to give members excellent return on their investment. Key to that is good
communication with members. Regular contact with BFO was made much easier with our recent move into the BFO building.
Mike McMorris
LRIC CEO
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ONTARIO CATTLE
FEEDERS’ ASSOCIATION
The Ontario Corn Fed Beef (OCFB) program

When we are talking to consumers here

well-defined marketing effort is critical for

continues to enjoy a strong partnership with

at home or anywhere else in the world,

long-term success.

the Beef Farmers of Ontario. The support

the conversation always comes down to

we have received over the years has been

our unique brand story. Who we are, what

integral to the success and the growth of

we do, how we do it, and why it matters,

the OCFB brand.

are all unique marketing elements of our

Despite the challenges our sector has
faced over the last two or three years, 2019
provided a sense of renewed optimism
for the future. Not long ago, our brand
was heralded as a local success story for

With the Comprehensive and Progressive
Agreement for Trans-Pacific Partnership
(CPTPP) going into effect last year, the trade

story supported by the Quality Assurance

pact created more market growth for the

program. It is this ability to tell our unique

OCFB brand.

story that provides Ontario packers with
a unique product offering in key markets
around the world.

We have seen our stable of brand partners
in the primary export market of Japan
increase to 17 committed retail chains

becoming recognized internationally for

In times of challenging markets, I see

actively marketing the brand, totaling over

high-quality and great-tasting beef. From

producers have a difficult time recognizing

300 stores and covering each region in

Local Roots to Global Recognition was

there is a significant difference between

Japan.

the headline. That headline still rings true

marketing cattle and marketing beef.

today, and we have seen the Ontario Corn

While sometimes it’s easy to interchange

Fed Beef program take another massive

the words “cattle” and “beef,” they’re two

leap forward and break into markets

different beasts, so to speak, when it comes

and segments where no other brand of

to marketing. And when times are tough,

Canadian beef has gone before.

it isn’t very easy for producers to see how

From the beginning, we have worked
from a blueprint to help achieve our goal

the beef marketing and promotional efforts
affect them.

As a testament to our success in Japan, we
were thrilled to host two very distinguished
guests at the recent 2020 Beef Industry
Convention. Mr. Hiroshi Ueda and Mr.
Satohi Toyoda of Kinsho Stores graciously
took the time to travel a long way to visit
with us all. Kinsho was the first Japanese
partner to feature Ontario Corn Fed Beef,

for a sustainable beef industry in Ontario.

But our program is making a difference.

and we have since enjoyed a long and

This blueprint, which is based on mutual

In 2018, Ontario represented 30 per cent

trust between partners, has enabled us to

of all Canadian beef exports, up from 15

valued partnership.

build the program. The commitment of our

per cent in 2008. Ontario Corn Fed Beef

While we have touted the benefits of our

certified feedlot operators who deliver our

has led the way in the branding of Ontario

brand over the years, it was fascinating

on-farm Quality Assurance program, serves

beef in export markets since 2014. When

to hear similar comments from one of our

as the foundation of the Ontario Corn Fed

you consider that 38 per cent of the value

international partners. In their presentation

Beef brand.

of a fed carcass is driven by export value, a

at our convention, the Kinsho officials
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said the excellent flavour of Ontario Corn

To help keep our program moving forward,

As we move forward with our export

Fed Beef is of high quality and – with

I’m excited about some changes in staffing

market development program, we are

the commitment of our producers to the

this past year. We have added Brent Cavell

excited to see opportunities developing for

Quality Assurance program – it can be

and Chelsea Martin, who lead our Quality

collaboration with our national marketing

sold to consumers with confidence. “This

Assurance (QA) Program. Brent’s overall

organization, Canada Beef. In the next

deliciousness is a crystal that has been

knowledge of beef production, marketing

year, we plan to participate at several

produced with the utmost effort and

and feed production will be essential as

key international trade events where

affection of all the producers here,” said Mr.

we move our industry forward. Besides

Ontario Corn Fed Beef will be represented

Ueda. “We promise to continue to deliver

doing the on-farm audits as part of the QA

alongside other Canadian beef brands and

this consistent commitment to quality to

program, Chelsea represents the brand at

programs as a unique brand of Canadian

consumers on your behalf.”

the various trade show and industry events.

The kind words from Mr. Ueda are

She has also been actively promoting our
program and beef farming through our

particularly gratifying because these are

social media platforms. I would also like to

the types of comments we hear in other

thank Adam Hill for his time and work while

markets from our partners who tell us the

he was employed at OCFA.

Ontario Corn Fed Beef story resonates well
with their customers.

In closing, I would like to thank everybody
in the entire agricultural sector who has

The great taste of

partnered with us and supported us and our

Ontario Corn Fed

program. I’m so fortunate to be in a position

Beef was confirmed

where I have the opportunity to lead and

once again as we

be part of the growth of the Ontario Corn

received another 3

Fed Beef brand. It’s rewarding to see the

Star Superior Taste

various pieces fit together and see the

award from the International Taste Institute

positive results. It would not be possible

in Brussels, Belgium. This award verifies

without the backing we receive from the

the positive impact of a high-energy, corn-

industry. I want to express my thanks for the

based ration on the eating quality. This is

support we have received from the Beef

the fourth time Ontario Corn Fed Beef has

Farmers of Ontario, the Government of

received this prestigious award

Ontario and the Grain Farmers of Ontario.

Beef.
We have something in Ontario we need
to continue to focus on. We have strong
partnerships, passionate and resilient
producers, an industry-leading Quality
Assurance program and the best beef
brand story in Canada. I’m looking
forward to the future, knowing we have
accomplished a lot of great work together
and there is more to come in the years
ahead.
Respectfully submitted,
Jim Clark
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, ONTARIO CATTLE
FEEDERS’ ASSOCIATION AND ONTARIO
CORN FED BEEF PROGRAM
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LIVESTOCK FINANCIAL PROTECTION BOARD
(FUND FOR LIVESTOCK PRODUCERS)
Livestock Financial Protection Board (Fund for Livestock Producers)
FINANCIAL
financial position of fund balance
Revenue

POSITION OF FUND BALANCE

Deduction Income (Fees)

Investment Income

Total

March 31

EXPENSE
March 31

Claims Paid
Less Recoveries

Fund Expenses

Total Expenses

1982-90

$ 4,193,421

$ 1,840,250

$ 6,033,670

1982-90

$ 1,144,988

$ 230,190

$ 1,375,178

1990-91

122,045

550,719

672,764

1990-91

1,062,592

26,468

1,089,060

1991-92

122,690

516,580

639,270

1991-92

(4,128)

28,141

24,013

1992-93

129,619

359,584

489,203

1992-93

297,706

26,318

324,024

1993-94

118,522

320,641

439,164

1993-94

0

16,531

16,531

1994-95

117,214

272,497

389,711

1994-95

631,307

25,276

656,583

1995-96

116,336

395,416

511,751

1995-96

(140,770)

39,655

(101,115)

1996-97

122,363

280,360

402,723

1996-97

84,964

55,604

140,568

1997-98

129,849

285,801

415,650

1997-98

1,040

12,874

13,915

1998-99

119,662

330,511

450,173

1998-99

135,420

51,087

186,507

1999-2000

117,271

291,267

408,537

1999-2000

7,534

74,151

81,685

2000-2001

117,586

461,611

579,197

2000-2001

2,086,337

79,302

2,165,639

2001-2002

104,694

210,047

314,741

2001-2002

678,357

192,367

870,724

2002-2003

116,558

196,465

313,023

2002-2003

(39,760)

63,465

23,705

2003-2004

100,233

186,020

286,253

2003-2004

131,342

66,473

197,815

2004-2005

106,275

170,477

276,752

2004-2005

247,787

69,989

317,776

2005-2006

115,188

222,225

337,413

2005-2006

0

64,248

64,248

2006-2007

103,033

254,962

357,995

2006-2007

(350,000)

62,535

(287,465)

2007-2008

102,652

296,185

398,837

69,859

2008-2009

113,422

265,844

379,267

2009-2010

113,422
100,248

265,844
262,957

379,267
363,205

2010-2011

109,882

264,454

374,336

2011-2012

105,346

269,320

374,666

2012-2013

106,068

244,642

350,710

2013-2014

112,525

245,792

358,316

2014-2015

110,083

254,063

364,146

2015-2016

109,267

241,410

350,677

2016-2017

204,805

237,478

442,283

2017-2018

199,631

246,024

445,655

2018-2019

206,302

261,664

467,966

2007-2008

0

69,859

20082008-2009

0

67,631

2008-2009
2009-2010

0
(31,044)

67,361
87,295

2010-2011

235,110

148,360

716,338

2011-2012

69,371

116,571

402,483

2012-2013

657,227

127,766

784,993

2013-2014

(290,926)

179,348

(111,578)

2014-2015

164,452

179,770

344,222

2015-2016

387,136

227,524

614,660

2016-2017

0

196,733

196,733

2017-2018

0

203,168

203,168

2018-2019

0

174,119

174,119

67,631
67,361

56,251

FundBalance
BalanceatatMarch
March31
31 st,, 2019
Fund
2019
st

1983
1984
1985
1986
1987
1988
1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994

$496,350
$1,559,367
$2,111,466
$2,803,336
$3,470,057
$3,629,155
$4,353,020
$4,683,492
$4,267,196
$4,882,453
$5,047,632
$5,470,264

1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006

$5,203,392
$5,816,257
$6,078,412
$6,480,147
$6,743,918
$7,070,770
$5,484,329
$4,928,346
$5,218,720
$5,306,236
$5,265,078
$5,538,243

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

$6,183,703
$6,512,681
$6,824,578
$7,131,542
$7,122,407
$7,311,131
$6,876,848
$7,347,626
$7,063,727
$7,103,567
$ 7,349,117
$ 7,591,604
$ 7,885,451

Note:
1) Total income in 1982-83 includes a $25,000 start-up
grant from OMAFRA.
2) Deductions to the Fund were lowered from
$0.20/head to $0.10/head in 1984. Deductions were
lowered from $0.10/head to $0.05/head in April 1989
for sellers and agents and eliminated for buyers.
Deductions were increased from $0.05/head to
$0.10/head in 2016.
3) Fund expenses include the board and expenses for
determining financial responsibility.

Kat – note the page title change from last year. For the main page header, please use the title at the top
of this document rather than “Ontario Beef Cattle Financial Protection Fund” as it was last year. Also,
there was a note to the right of the little chart on the page last year. Please use that same note again
this year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of: Beef Farmers of Ontario
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Beef Farmers of Ontario, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019 and the statements of changes in net assets, operations
and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Beef
Farmers of Ontario as at December 31, 2019 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not for profit organizations.
Basis of Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of Beef Farmers of Ontario in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Canadian accounting standards for not for profit organizations and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the organization's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the organization or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a whole, are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
A further description of the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at RLB
LLP’s website at: www.rlb.ca/additional-auditor-responsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Guelph, Ontario
February 18, 2020

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
Page 3
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BEEF FARMERS OF ONTARIO
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019
2019
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Accounts and grants receivable
Accrued checkoff fees receivable
Investments (note 4)
Inventory - supplies
Inventory - livestock (note 11)
Prepaid expenses

2018

ASSETS
$

CAPITAL ASSETS (note 5)

931,747
277,941
520,819
2,159,388
22,451
34,263
52,293
3,998,902

$

773,246
145,744
504,061
2,055,983
25,477
36,474
51,304
3,592,289

277,432

282,530

$ 4,276,334

$ 3,874,819

$

$

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued National checkoff payments payable
Deferred revenue (note 6)
Research trust liability - New Liskeard (note 11)
Government remittances payable

411,890
49,218
5,710
184,241
12,887
663,946

413,548
63,008
10,955
160,383
26,408
674,302

NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS
Internally restricted building repair fund (note 2g)
Internally restricted research and projects fund (note 2g)
Unrestricted

See notes to the financial statements
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94,559
756,679
2,761,150
3,612,388

116,117
388,094
2,696,306
3,200,517

$ 4,276,334

$ 3,874,819

Page 4

BEEF FARMERS OF ONTARIO
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
INTERNALLY
INTERNALLY
RESTRICTED
RESTRICTED
BUILDING
RESEARCH
REPAIR
AND PROJECTS
FUND
FUND
UNRESTRICTED

(note 2g)

BALANCE, beginning
of year

$

Surplus (deficiency) of
income over
expenses
Transfers (note 14)
BALANCE, end of year $

(note 2g)

116,117

$

0
(21,558)
94,559

2018

$ 3,475,082

388,094

$ 2,696,306

$ 3,200,517

0

411,871

411,871

368,585
$

2019

756,679

(347,027)
$ 2,761,150

See notes to the financial statements

(274,565)

0

0

$ 3,612,388

$ 3,200,517

Page 5
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BEEF FARMERS OF ONTARIO
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

INCOME
Fees
Less: Commissions to firms making deduction
7 day dealer refund
Investment income
Magazine revenue
Other income
Toronto Stockyards Land Development Board
(note 12)
Grants (note 13)
Elora Research Station AgriInnovation
program grant
EXPENSES
Association activities - budgeted (schedule 1)
Operations budgeted (schedule 1)
Elora Research Station
(DEFICIENCY) SURPLUS OF INCOME
OVER EXPENSES for the year

2019
BUDGET
(note 7)

2019
ACTUAL

2018
ACTUAL

$ 3,688,000
(51,000)
(190,000)
3,447,000
80,000
70,000
17,200
3,614,200

$ 4,196,893
(42,933)
(220,023)
3,933,937
115,062
71,914
31,613
4,152,526

$ 3,876,839
(41,944)
(185,215)
3,649,680
9,667
78,633
25,298
3,763,278

1,127,100
0

1,128,989
111,113

1,105,489
100,976

0
4,741,300

0
5,392,628

876,264
5,846,007

3,635,624
1,694,000
0
5,329,624

3,207,810
1,772,947
0
4,980,757

2,941,569
1,632,887
1,546,116
6,120,572

$ (588,324)

See notes to the financial statements
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$

411,871

$ (274,565)

Page 6

BEEF FARMERS OF ONTARIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
2019
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplus (deficiency) of income over expenses for the year
Items not requiring an outlay of cash
Amortization

$

2018

411,871

$ (274,565)

17,645
429,516

16,498
(258,067)

(132,197)
(16,758)
3,026
2,211
(989)
(1,658)
(13,790)
(5,245)
(13,521)
23,858
(155,063)
274,453

538,378
2,155
5,118
(1,895)
(2,963)
(581,211)
(269)
1,855
6,428
80,027
47,623
(210,444)

(12,547)
(103,405)
(115,952)

(15,521)
696,588
681,067

NET INCREASE IN CASH

158,501

470,623

NET CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

773,246

302,623

Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts and grants receivable
Accrued checkoff fees receivable
Inventory - supplies
Inventory - livestock
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued national checkoff payments
Deferred revenue
Government remittances payable
Research trust liability - New Liskeard

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to capital assets
Investments

NET CASH, END OF YEAR

$

See notes to the financial statements

931,747

$

773,246
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BEEF FARMERS OF ONTARIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

1.

PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION
Beef Farmers of Ontario is a tax exempt body established by Provincial legislation to support the
beef cattle industry in Ontario through promotion, research and other activities.

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The organization is subject to the Ontario Business Corporations Act. The financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not for profit
organizations and include the following significant accounting policies:
(a)

REVENUE RECOGNITION
The organization follows the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions in
which externally restricted contributions are recognized upon receipt in the appropriate
fund corresponding to the purpose for which they were contributed. Externally restricted
contributions of the unrestricted fund are recognized as revenue when the related
expenditure occurs. Unrestricted revenues are recognized in the unrestricted fund when
received or receivable and collection is reasonably assured.

(b)

INVENTORY
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost, using the weighted average cost basis, and net
realizable value.

(c)

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets are recorded at cost and amortized on the basis of their estimated useful
life using the following methods and rates:
Building and building renovations
Office furniture and equipment
Computer equipment
Computer software

(d)

- 4% declining balance
- 20% declining balance
- 30% declining balance
- 50% declining balance

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG LIVED ASSETS
Long lived assets are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognized when the carrying value exceeds the total undiscounted cash flows
expected from their use and eventual disposition. The amount of the impairment loss is
determined as the excess of the carrying value of the asset over its fair value.

(e)

USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards
for not for profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the year. The significant areas where estimates have
been used are the accrued checkoff fees receivable, amortization and accrued national
checkoff payments payable. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Page 8
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BEEF FARMERS OF ONTARIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Measurement of financial instruments
The organization initially measures its financial assets and liabilities at fair value.
The organization subsequently measures all its financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortized cost, except for its investments, which are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognized in net surplus.
Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash, accounts and grants
receivable and accrued checkoff fees receivable.
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, accrued national checkoff payments payable and research trust liability - New
Liskeard.
Impairment
Financial assets measured at amortized cost are tested for impairment when there are
indicators of impairment. If an impairment has occurred, the carrying amount of financial
assets measured at amortized cost is reduced to the greater of the discounted future
cash flows expected or the proceeds that could be realized from the sale of the financial
asset. The amount of the write-down is recognized in net surplus. The previously
recognized impairment loss may be reversed to the extent of the improvement, directly or
by adjusting the allowance account, provided it is no greater than the amount that would
have been reported at the date of the reversal had the impairment not been recognized
previously. The amount of the reversal is recognized in net surplus.
Transaction costs
The organization recognizes its transaction costs in net income in the period incurred.
However, financial instruments that will not be subsequently measured at fair value are
adjusted by the transaction costs that are directly attributable to their origination, issuance
or assumption.

(g)

FUND ACCOUNTING
Internally restricted building repair fund
The internally restricted building repair fund reports resources available for the
organization's building repair activities.
Internally restricted research and projects fund
The internally restricted research and projects fund reports resources allocated by the
organization for research and project commitments in future years.
Unrestricted fund
The unrestricted fund reports resources available for the organization's general operating
activities.

Page 9
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BEEF FARMERS OF ONTARIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

3.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the organization is not exposed to
significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from the financial instruments.
The extent of the organization's exposure to these risks did not change in 2019 compared to the
previous period.
The organization does not have a significant exposure to any individual customer or counterpart.

4.

INVESTMENTS
Investments consist of a combination of income and exchange-traded funds, as well as cash
temporarily held in the investment trading account.
2019
2018
Beginning balance
Transfers into (out) of investment account
Realized gains in the year
Broker fees
Unrealized gain (loss) on adjustment to market value

5.

CAPITAL ASSETS
Cost
Land
Building
Building renovations
Office furniture and equipment
Computer equipment
Computer software

6.

$ 2,055,983
0
71,960
(11,466)
42,911

$ 2,752,571
(700,000)
87,994
(10,886)
(73,696)

$ 2,159,388

$ 2,055,983

Net
2019

Net
2018

Accumulated
Amortization

$

94,000
210,317
204,515
129,591
207,996
45,761

$

0
137,550
127,934
122,420
183,207
43,637

$

94,000
72,767
76,581
7,171
24,789
2,124

$

94,000
75,799
79,772
5,773
26,524
662

$

892,180

$

614,748

$

277,432

$

282,530

DEFERRED REVENUE
Deferred revenue consists of sponsorships and trade show space related to the annual meeting:
2019

7.

Beginning balance
Less: amount recognized in the year
Add: amount received relating to the following year

$

Ending balance

$

2018

10,955 $
(10,455)
5,210
5,710

$

9,100
(8,600)
10,455
10,955

BUDGET FIGURES
The budgeted figures are presented for comparison purposes as prepared and approved by the
Board, reclassified to conform to the current financial statement presentation. They have not been
audited or reviewed by the auditor.
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BEEF FARMERS OF ONTARIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

8.

NATIONAL CHECKOFF AGENCY
The organization pays $1 per head to the National Beef Cattle Research Market Development and
Promotion Agency and for the national beef advertising and promotion campaign, and
subsequently receives 50 cents per head for association activities which are aligned with the
national proclamation.

9.

FEEDER FINANCE PROGRAM
The organization has embarked on a joint program with the Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food
and Rural Affairs, the purpose of which is to guarantee a portion of loans to feeder cattle finance
co-operatives to purchase cattle. The expenses are not to exceed $55,000 in the provincial
government's fiscal year and are fully recoverable from the Ministry.

10.

COMMITMENTS
The organization has committed to fund future research projects in the amount of $266,679 in
2020, $230,000 in 2021, $230,000 in 2022, and $30,000 in 2023, totalling $756,679.

11.

NEW LISKEARD RESEARCH HERD
During 1994, the organization entered into an agreement with the Ontario Ministry of Agriculture,
Food and Rural Affairs in which the organization agreed to purchase the beef cattle research herd
in New Liskeard. The purchase took place over a period of years during which the organization
paid for the annual crop of calves born and continues to receive the proceeds from sale of these
animals. Any excess proceeds over time must be used for beef research.

12.

TORONTO STOCKYARDS LAND DEVELOPMENT BOARD
The former Toronto stockyards land has been developed as a commercial rental property by the
Toronto Stockyards Land Development Board. The organization receives a contribution from this
organization.

13.

GRANT REVENUE
Grant revenue relates to the following programs:
Environmental Value of Ontario Beef Production
Feeder Finance Program (note 9)
National Feedlot Surveillance Program
Truck Rollover Response project
Pooling for Sustainable Beef Production project
Northern Expansion project
Validating Ontario Beef Terroir project

14.

2019

2018

$

49,947
48,187
10,000
2,979
0
0
0

$

0
55,270
0
15,859
15,372
11,163
3,312

$

111,113

$

100,976

INTERFUND TRANSFER
During the year, the organization transferred $21,558 from the internally restricted building repair
fund (2018 - $0) to the unrestricted fund. In addition, the organization transferred $368,585 from
unrestricted funds (2018 - $136,290) to the internally restricted research and projects fund. The
closing balance in the internally restricted research and projects fund of $756,679 is for beef cattle
research commitments in future years.
Page 11
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BEEF FARMERS OF ONTARIO
SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

Schedule 1

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
2019
BUDGET
(note 7)
ASSOCIATION ACTIVITIES - BUDGETED
Annual meeting (net of revenue $55,425 - 2019,
$44,272 - 2018)
Grants and memberships - Canadian Cattlemen's
Association
- National checkoff (note 8)
- Counties
- Industry sponsorships and other grants
- Farm & Food Care Ontario
- OAFB
Communications
- Consumer engagement
- Ontario beef magazine
- Producer engagement
- Other (net of revenue $2,407 - 2019, $3,153
- 2018)
License fee enforcement
Lobbying
Breeder finance support
Industry, market development and research
OCFA support for marketing corn-fed beef
Regional marketing initiative
Feedlot/Cow-calf Committee (net of revenue
$18,775 - 2019, $0 - 2018)

OPERATIONS - BUDGETED
Elected officers' remuneration
Elected officers' expenses
Salaries and benefits
Staff expenses
Postage
Premises costs
Office
Telephone and fax
Legal
Audit
Amortization

$

220,000

202,658

$

205,079

492,267
467,950
206,327
100,618
30,000
20,000

393,211
455,096
176,811
55,228
30,000
20,000

270,000
150,000
75,000

287,967
150,708
45,229

3,001
162,477
12,606

60,000
116,000
160,000
2,000
440,000
460,000
338,000

64,555
133,470
132,895
3,593
421,701
451,629
0

68,669
112,893
170,792
2,053
411,070
448,704
212,944

5,000

(3,757)

935

$ 3,635,624

$ 3,207,810

$ 2,941,569

$

$

$

195,000
185,000
1,036,000
60,000
18,000
65,000
60,000
33,000
10,000
16,000
16,000

See notes to the financial statements
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$

2018
ACTUAL

493,000
466,600
210,000
120,024
30,000
20,000

$ 1,694,000
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2019
ACTUAL

201,999
224,147
1,048,799
67,032
11,157
76,540
82,061
26,603
2,398
14,566
17,645

$ 1,772,947

191,067
166,466
1,024,443
46,521
13,296
46,186
76,870
27,669
6,968
16,903
16,498

$ 1,632,887
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2020 PRELIMINARY BUDGET
INCOME
Check-Off Income
License Fees (Gross)
Ontario Fees
Other Provincial Fees
Less CCA Fees
Less CCA Legal Assessment
Less National Checkoff
- Returned to Ontario
Less Commissions
Less 7 Day Dealer Exemption

2020 BUDGET
$5,180,000
$215,000
450,000
24,000
903,000
442,400
50,000
245,000

NET CHECK-OFF INCOME
OTHER INCOME
Toronto Stockyards L.D.B.
Interest & Investment Income
Lease Revenue
Brand Registration
Project Income
SUB TOTAL

$3,735,400

TOTAL NET INCOME

$4,975,900

EXPENSES
Administrative & General
Elected Officers Remuneration
Board
Advisory Council
Committee Members
CCA
Elected Officers Expenses
Board
Advisory Council
Committee
CCA
Salaries & Benefits
Staff Expenses
Staff Training
Postage & Courier
Premise Costs
Office Supplies/Equipment Rentals
Telephone & Fax
Legal
Insurance
Audit & Accounting Services
Amortization
SUBTOTAL ADMIN & GENERAL

$1,152,000
70,000
18,000
500
$1,240,500

$190,000

190,000

1,050,000
60,000
6,000
14,000
65,000
58,000
28,000
10,000
35,000
16,000
16,000
$1,738,000
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Association Activities

2020 BUDGET

Memberships
Sponsorships
Miscellaneous Grants
County/District Grants and Sharecost
Communications
Producer Engagement
Consumer Engagement
Ontario Beef Magazine (Net)
Other
Trade Shows

75,000
270,000
80,000
40,000
12,000

Annual Meeting-Hotel & Voting Delegates
Miscellaneous
Lobbying Expense
License Fee Enforcement

205,000
160,000
115,000

SUBTOTAL ASSOC. ACTIVITIES

95,000
82,500
175,000

$1,309,500

Industry Expenses
Industry Dev'mt, Market Dev'mt, VBP
Research Projects
Ontario Corn-Fed Beef Support
Ontario Beef Breeder Program Support
Feedlot/Cow-Calf/GR Committees
SUBTOTAL INDUSTRY EXPENSES
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

$215,000
185,000
450,000
$850,000
$3,897,500

Project Expenses
Elora Research Centre
Market Development
SUBTOTAL PROJECT EXPENSES
GAIN /LOSS ON OPERATIONS

Note: Checkoff revenue based on an estimated 860,000 net marketings. This does not include checkoff
collected on behalf of other provinces.
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1,075,000
$1,075,000
$3,400

NOTES
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NOTES
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/Beef Farmers of Ontario
@BeefFarmersON @BeefNorth @OntarioBeef
/OntarioBeef
/OntarioBeef
@beeffarmersofon @ontbeef

1.866.370.2333

ontariobeef.com

ontbeef.ca

beefnorth.com

